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        Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ý    No o

        Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes o    No o

        Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ý Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o
(Do not check if a smaller

reporting company)

Smaller reporting company o

        Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o    No ý

        There were 158,960,030 shares of the registrant's common stock, par value $0.10 per share, issued and outstanding as of October 31, 2009.
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 PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

 Item 1.    Financial Statements.

SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Net sales:
Food Packaging $ 463.4 $ 479.7 $ 1,336.1 $ 1,466.9
Food Solutions 229.6 255.9 655.0 751.0
Protective Packaging 306.1 377.2 868.0 1,141.7
Other 80.8 106.2 237.3 315.6

Total net sales 1,079.9 1,219.0 3,096.4 3,675.2
Cost of sales 768.8 925.3 2,211.5 2,746.2

Gross profit 311.1 293.7 884.9 929.0
Marketing,
administrative and
development expenses 180.0 193.2 515.5 582.9
Restructuring and other
charges 0.9 61.3 1.2 63.8

Operating profit 130.2 39.2 368.2 282.3
Interest expense (41.9) (30.7) (114.6) (96.4)
Loss on debt
redemption (3.4) � (3.4) �
Impairment of
available-for-sale
securities (3.2) (3.7) (3.2) (13.7)
Other expense, net (2.4) (1.3) (4.2) (3.2)

Earnings before
income tax provision
(benefit) 79.3 3.5 242.8 169.0

Income tax provision
(benefit) 18.7 (5.7) 63.6 36.4

Net earnings available
to common
stockholders $ 60.6 $ 9.2 $ 179.2 $ 132.6
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Net earnings per
common share:
Basic $ 0.38 $ 0.06 $ 1.13 $ 0.83

Diluted $ 0.34 $ 0.05 $ 0.99 $ 0.73

Dividends paid per
common share $ 0.12 $ 0.12 $ 0.36 $ 0.36

Weighted average
number of common
shares outstanding:
Basic 157.4 156.4 157.1 158.0

Diluted 178.3 174.6 184.9 189.0

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

1
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions, except share data)

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

(Unaudited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 487.1 $ 128.9
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $17.5 in 2009 and $19.5 in 2008 690.5 682.8
Inventories 513.2 564.3
Deferred taxes 179.5 230.4
Other current assets 73.4 66.3

Total current assets 1,943.7 1,672.7
Property and equipment, net 1,037.9 1,051.4
Goodwill 1,949.7 1,938.1
Non-current investments�available-for-sale securities 13.8 10.7
Deferred taxes 147.7 84.2
Other assets, net 240.0 228.9

Total assets $ 5,332.8 $ 4,986.0

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings $ 28.4 $ 37.6
Current portion of long-term debt 5.6 151.5
Accounts payable 228.1 277.2
Settlement agreement and related accrued interest 737.0 707.8
Accrued restructuring costs 19.0 49.4
Other current liabilities 435.4 398.7

Total current liabilities 1,453.5 1,622.2
Long-term debt, less current portion 1,565.4 1,289.9
Other liabilities 141.4 148.3

Total liabilities 3,160.3 3,060.4
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $0.10 par value per share, 50,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued in 2009 and
2008 � �
Common stock, $0.10 par value per share, 400,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued: 168,630,531 in
2009 and 168,111,815 in 2008; shares outstanding: 158,861,480 in 2009 and 157,882,527 in 2008 16.9 16.8
Common stock reserved for issuance related to asbestos settlement, $0.10 par value per share,
18,000,000 shares in 2009 and 2008 1.8 1.8
Additional paid-in capital 1,110.4 1,102.5
Retained earnings 1,486.0 1,364.3
Common stock in treasury, 9,769,051 shares in 2009 and 10,229,288 shares in 2008 (363.7) (383.2)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes:
Unrecognized pension items (54.7) (60.2)
Cumulative translation adjustment (33.8) (122.4)
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 4.0 �
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Unrealized gains on derivative instruments 4.4 5.0

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes (80.1) (177.6)

Total parent company stockholders' equity 2,171.3 1,924.6
Noncontrolling interests 1.2 1.0

Total stockholders' equity 2,172.5 1,925.6

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 5,332.8 $ 4,986.0

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

2
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

(In millions)

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 179.2 $ 132.6
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 135.2 130.6
Amortization of senior debt related items and other 1.5 1.3
Loss on debt redemption 3.4 �
Provision for bad debts 3.5 4.2
Impairment of available-for-sale securities 3.2 13.7
Deferred taxes, net (20.7) (2.6)
Net gain on disposals of property and equipment and other (1.7) (0.9)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of businesses acquired and disposed:
Receivables, net 98.0 (30.4)
Accounts receivable securitization program (80.0) 135.0
Inventories 75.8 (57.6)
Other current assets (3.2) (25.6)
Other assets, net 0.9 (6.7)
Accounts payable (56.1) (10.2)
Income taxes payable (10.5) (18.7)
Other current liabilities 34.8 64.7
Other liabilities (4.6) (3.3)

Net cash provided by operating activities 358.7 326.1

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures for property and equipment (60.2) (141.9)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 2.1 3.6
Businesses acquired in purchase transactions, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired (0.7) (2.9)
Other investing activities 1.5 2.2

Net cash used in investing activities (57.3) (139.0)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 703.8 83.0
Payments of long-term debt (583.9) (303.7)
Dividends paid on common stock (57.1) (57.4)
Payment of debt issuance costs (7.0) �
Net (repayments) proceeds from short-term borrowings (7.6) 7.0
Repurchases of common stock � (95.1)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 48.2 (366.2)

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 8.6 23.2

Cash and cash equivalents:
Balance, beginning of period $ 128.9 $ 430.3
Net change during the period 358.2 (155.9)
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Balance, end of period $ 487.1 $ 274.4

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest payments, net of amounts capitalized $ 85.2 $ 77.9

Income tax payments $ 90.1 $ 76.2

Non-cash items:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities $ 6.3 $ 2.4

Issuance of shares of the Company's common stock as part of the Company's 2008 employee profit sharing plan contribution $ 5.9 $ �

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited)

(In millions)

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 60.6 $ 9.2 $ 179.2 $ 132.6
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes:
Recognition of deferred pension items, net of income tax provision of $0.4 for the three
months ended September 30, 2009, $0.2 for the three months ended September 30, 2008,
$1.2 for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and $0.7 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 1.9 1.3 5.5 4.2
Unrealized losses on derivative instruments, net of income tax benefit of $0.1 for the
three months ended September 30, 2008, $0.3 for the nine months ended September 30,
2009 and $0.5 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 � (0.1) (0.6) (0.9)
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities, reclassified to net earnings, net of
income tax benefit (provision) of $0.7 for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2009, $(1.4) for the three months ended September 30, 2008, and $(5.3) for the nine
months ended September 30, 2008 (1.1) 2.3 (1.1) 8.4
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of income tax (provision)
benefit of $(0.6) for the three months ended September 30, 2009, $(0.1) for the three
months ended September 30, 2008, $(3.0) for the nine months ended September 30, 2009
and $2.9 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 1.2 0.3 5.1 (4.5)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 50.3 (104.3) 88.6 (0.9)

Comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes $ 112.9 $ (91.3) $ 276.7 $ 138.9

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in tables are in millions, except per share data)

 (1) Organization and Basis of Presentation

Organization

        Sealed Air Corporation and its subsidiaries, or the Company, is a leading global innovator and manufacturer of a wide range of packaging
and performance-based materials and equipment systems that serve an array of food, industrial, medical and consumer applications.

        The Company conducts substantially all of its business through two direct wholly-owned subsidiaries, Cryovac, Inc. and Sealed Air
Corporation (US). These two subsidiaries, directly and indirectly, own substantially all of the assets of the business and conduct operations
themselves and through subsidiaries around the world. The Company adopted this corporate structure in connection with the Cryovac
transaction. See "Cryovac Transaction," of Note 14, "Commitments and Contingencies," for a description of the Cryovac transaction and related
terms used in these Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basis of Presentation

        The condensed consolidated financial statements include all of the Company's accounts. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation. In management's opinion, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring accruals,
necessary for a fair presentation of the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2009 and the condensed
consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 have been made. The results set forth in
the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of
the results to be expected for the full year. All amounts are approximate due to rounding. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the current year's presentation. Reclassifications in the aggregate had an immaterial effect on the Company's condensed consolidated
financial statements.

        The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition or disclosure in these consolidated financial statements through
November 9, 2009, the date this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q was issued.

        The condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared following the interim reporting requirements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or the SEC. As permitted under those rules, annual footnotes or other financial information that are normally required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or U.S. GAAP, have been condensed or omitted. The preparation of
condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts and the disclosure of contingent amounts in the condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

        The Company is responsible for the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes included in this document. As these
are condensed financial statements, they should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes included in
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and with the information contained in the Company's
other publicly-available filings with the SEC.

5
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in tables are in millions, except per share data)

 (2) Recent Accounting Standards

Adopted in the Three Months Ended September 30, 2009

        In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"), established the FASB Accounting Standards Codification� as the single
source of authoritative U.S. GAAP. While this codification does not change U.S. GAAP, it changes the way the Company refers to U.S. GAAP
in its consolidated financial statements and notes. The Company's adoption of this guidance did not have any impact on its consolidated financial
position or results of operations. Unless necessary to clarify a point to readers, the Company will refrain from citing specific topic and section
references when discussing application of U.S. GAAP or addressing new or pending accounting standard changes.

Pending Adoption

        In December 2008, the FASB issued new disclosure standards that provide guidance on an employer's disclosures about plan assets of a
defined benefit pension plan or other postretirement plan, including disclosure of how investment allocation decisions are made, major
categories of plan assets, inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan assets and concentrations of credit risk. These
new disclosure standards are effective for the Company's annual disclosures included in its 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The adoption of
these new disclosure standards will not impact the Company's consolidated financial position or results of operations as they are disclosure-only
in nature.

        In June 2009, the FASB issued new accounting standards relating to the transfer of financial assets. These standards require entities to
provide more information regarding sales of securitized financial assets and similar transactions, particularly if the entity has continuing
exposure to the risks related to transferred financial assets. They also eliminate the concept of a "qualifying special-purpose entity," change the
requirements for derecognizing financial assets and require additional disclosures. These standards are effective for the Company beginning
January 1, 2010 and early application is prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the impact these standards may have on its
consolidated financial position and results of operations and specifically the impact they may have on its accounts receivable securitization
program.

        Also, in June 2009, the FASB issued new accounting standards which change how a company determines when an entity that is
insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting (or similar rights) should be consolidated. The determination of whether a company
is required to consolidate an entity is based on, among other things, an entity's purpose and design and a company's ability to direct the activities
of the entity that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance. These standards are effective for the Company beginning
January 1, 2010 and earlier application is prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the impact these standards may have on its
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

        In September 2009, the FASB ratified an amendment to accounting standards addressing revenue recognition for arrangements with
multiple revenue-generating activities. The amendment addresses how revenue should be allocated to separate elements which could impact the
timing of revenue recognition. The amendment is effective for the Company on a prospective basis for revenue arrangements entered into or
materially modified in fiscal years ending after June 30, 2010 and earlier

6
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in tables are in millions, except per share data)

(2) Recent Accounting Standards (Continued)

application is permitted. The Company may elect, but is not required, to apply the standards retrospectively to all prior periods. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact these standards may have on its consolidated financial position and results of operations.

        The Company reviewed all other significant newly issued accounting standards and concluded that they are either not applicable to the
Company's business or that no material effect is expected on its consolidated financial position and results of operations as a result of future
adoption.

 (3) Segments

        The following table shows net sales, depreciation and amortization and operating profit by the Company's segment reporting structure.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Net sales:
Food Packaging $ 463.4 $ 479.7 $ 1,336.1 $ 1,466.9
Food Solutions 229.6 255.9 655.0 751.0
Protective Packaging 306.1 377.2 868.0 1,141.7
Other 80.8 106.2 237.3 315.6

Total $ 1,079.9 $ 1,219.0 $ 3,096.4 $ 3,675.2

Depreciation and amortization:
Food Packaging $ 20.3 $ 18.9 $ 59.9 $ 56.1
Food Solutions 9.5 8.5 27.2 24.9
Protective Packaging 11.1 10.6 32.3 36.0
Other 6.0 4.9 15.8 13.6

Total $ 46.9 $ 42.9 $ 135.2 $ 130.6

Operating profit(1):
Food Packaging $ 63.5 $ 36.9 $ 184.5 $ 150.1
Food Solutions 21.4 17.1 66.3 52.3
Protective Packaging 41.4 39.6 108.1 130.3
Other 4.8 6.9 10.5 13.4

Total segments and other 131.1 100.5 369.4 346.1
Restructuring and other charges(2) 0.9 61.3 1.2 63.8

Total $ 130.2 $ 39.2 $ 368.2 $ 282.3
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in tables are in millions, except per share data)

(3) Segments (Continued)

(2)
The restructuring and other charges by the Company's segment reporting structure were as follows:

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Food Packaging $ 0.6 $ 28.2 $ 1.0 $ 30.4
Food Solutions 0.1 11.8 0.3 12.0
Protective
Packaging 0.2 17.2 (0.1) 17.3
Other � 4.1 � 4.1

Total $ 0.9 $ 61.3 $ 1.2 $ 63.8

        Restructuring and other charges in the three months ended September 30, 2009 and in both periods of 2008 primarily relate to the
Company's cost reduction and productivity program. The restructuring charge related to this program was $59.9 million for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2008. The remaining amount of restructuring and other charges in 2008 and 2009 related to the Company's global
manufacturing strategy. See Note 4, "Cost Reduction and Productivity Program and Global Manufacturing Strategy," for further discussion.

        The following table shows assets allocated to the Company's reportable segments. Only assets which are identifiable by segment and
reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker by segment are allocated to the reportable segment assets, which are trade
receivables, net, and finished goods inventory, net. All other assets are included in "Assets not allocated." Assets not allocated primarily include
goodwill of $1,949.7 million at September 30, 2009 and $1,938.1 million at December 31, 2008 and total property and equipment, net, of
$1,037.9 million at September 30, 2009 and $1,051.4 million at December 31, 2008.

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Assets:
Trade receivables, net, and
finished goods inventory, net
Food Packaging $ 441.5 $ 443.1
Food Solutions 214.7 216.6
Protective Packaging 275.0 281.2
Other 58.5 72.5

Total segments and other 989.7 1,013.4
Assets not allocated 4,343.1 3,972.6

Total $ 5,332.8 $ 4,986.0

Allocation of Goodwill to Reportable Segments

        The Company's management views goodwill as a corporate asset and does not allocate its goodwill balance to its reportable segments.
However, the Company is required to allocate goodwill to each
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in tables are in millions, except per share data)

(3) Segments (Continued)

reporting unit in order to perform its annual impairment review of goodwill, which it does during the fourth quarter of the year. See Note 9,
"Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets," for the allocation of goodwill, the changes in goodwill balances in the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 by the Company's segment reporting structure, and the details of the Company's interim goodwill impairment reviews.

 (4) Cost Reduction and Productivity Program and Global Manufacturing Strategy

Cost Reduction and Productivity Program

        In the third quarter of 2008, the Company implemented a cost reduction and productivity program. The components of the restructuring
accrual, which was primarily for termination benefits, through September 30, 2009 and the accrual balance remaining at September 30, 2009
related to this program are included in the table below. The Company expects to incur additional modest costs associated with this program in
the remainder of 2009.

Restructuring accrual at December 31, 2008 $ 43.7
Cash payments made during 2009 (31.9)
Additional accrual for termination benefits 0.5
Effect of changes in foreign currency rates (0.4)

Restructuring accrual at September 30, 2009 $ 11.9

        The Company expects to pay $11.7 million of the accrual balance remaining at September 30, 2009 within the next 12 months. This amount
is included in other current liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2009. The remaining accrual of $0.2 million
is expected to be paid by the end of 2010 and is included in other liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2009.

Global Manufacturing Strategy

        The Company's global manufacturing strategy, when fully implemented, will expand production in regions where demand for the
Company's products and services has been growing significantly. At the same time, the Company is optimizing certain manufacturing platforms
in North America and Europe into centers of excellence. The goals of this multi-year program are to expand capacity in growing markets, further
improve the Company's operating efficiencies, and implement new technologies more effectively. By taking advantage of new technologies and
streamlining production on a global scale, the Company expects to continue to enhance its profitable growth and its global leadership position
and produce meaningful savings.

        The Company announced the first phase of this multi-year global manufacturing strategy in July 2006. At the end of 2008, the construction
phase of the program was substantially complete. The

9
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in tables are in millions, except per share data)

(4) Cost Reduction and Productivity Program and Global Manufacturing Strategy (Continued)

capital expenditures, associated costs and related restructuring charges and the total amounts incurred since inception of this multi-year strategy
are included in the table below.

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

Cumulative
Through

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
Capital expenditures $ 5.2 $ 16.3 $ 16.6 $ 43.8 $ 149.3
Associated costs(1) 2.3 2.2 7.6 5.9 30.2
Restructuring and other charges(2) 0.3 1.4 0.8 3.9 32.6

(1)
The associated costs principally include facility start-up costs, which are primarily included in cost of sales on the condensed
consolidated statements of operations. These charges by the Company's reporting structure were as follows:

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Food Packaging $ 1.9 $ 1.4 $ 6.2 $ 2.8
Food Solutions 0.3 0.1 0.6 0.5
Protective Packaging 0.1 0.7 0.8 2.4
Other � � � 0.2

Total $ 2.3 $ 2.2 $ 7.6 $ 5.9

(2)
The restructuring and other charges were primarily for termination benefits, the majority of which were related to the Food Packaging
segment. These charges were included in restructuring and other charges on the condensed consolidated statements of operations. See
Note 3, "Segments," for restructuring and other charges by reportable segment and Other. A reconciliation of the restructuring accrual
for the Company's global manufacturing strategy is included below.

        The components of the restructuring accrual through September 30, 2009 and the accrual balance remaining at September 30, 2009 were as
follows:

Restructuring accrual at December 31, 2008 $ 14.4
Cash payments made during 2009 (6.5)
Adjustment to accrual for termination benefits (0.4)
Effect of changes in foreign currency rates 0.2

Restructuring accrual at September 30, 2009 $ 7.7
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        The Company expects to pay $7.0 million of the accrual balance remaining at September 30, 2009 within the next 12 months. This amount
is included in other current liabilities on the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2009. The remaining accrual of
$0.7 million is
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(4) Cost Reduction and Productivity Program and Global Manufacturing Strategy (Continued)

expected to be paid by the end of the first half of 2011 and is included in other liabilities on the Company's condensed consolidated balance
sheet at September 30, 2009.

 (5) Available-for-Sale Investments

        The following tables summarize the Company's investments in available-for-sale securities, which are classified as non-current assets and
are carried at fair value on the condensed consolidated balance sheets at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

Estimated
Fair Value at
December 31,

2008

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Other Than
Temporary
Impairment

Estimated
Fair Value at
September 30,

2009
Auction rate securities:
Debt instruments with contractual maturity dates in 2021, 2033, and
2036 $ 7.7 $ 6.3 $ (0.9) $ 13.1
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock 3.0 � (2.3) 0.7

Total $ 10.7 $ 6.3 $ (3.2) $ 13.8

Estimated
Fair Value at
December 31,

2007

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Other Than
Temporary
Impairment

Estimated
Fair Value at
December 31,

2008
Auction rate securities:
Debt instruments with contractual maturity dates in 2021, 2033, and 2036 $ 24.0 $ 0.7 $ (17.0) $ 7.7
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock 16.8 3.2 (17.0) 3.0

Total $ 40.8 $ 3.9 $ (34.0) $ 10.7

        The Company's available-for-sale investments, consisting of auction rate securities at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, are
exposed to market risk related to changes in conditions in the U.S. financial markets and in the financial condition of the issuers of these
securities. The Company's investment in auction rate securities at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 had an original cost of
$44.7 million (debt instruments of $24.7 million and non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock of $20.0 million).

        These auction rate securities consisted of two contingent capital securities that were converted into perpetual preferred stock of Ambac
Assurance Corporation (AMBAC), the issuer, in December 2008, and three debt instruments issued individually by Primus Financial
Products LLC (Primus) (maturity date 2021), River Lake Insurance Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Genworth Financial, Inc.
(Genworth) (maturity date 2033) and Ballantyne Re Plc (Ballantyne) (maturity date 2036).

        These five securities historically were re-auctioned every twenty-eight days, which had provided a liquid market for them. However, as a
result of continuing liquidity concerns affecting capital markets, particularly in the U.S., specifically for asset-backed securities, every auction
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(5) Available-for-Sale Investments (Continued)

these auction rate securities in 2008 and thus far in 2009 failed. The Company received interest and dividend payments of $0.2 million for the
three months ended September 30, 2009 and $1.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009.

        The Company accounts for these investments as available-for-sale investments and determines whether a decline in fair value below its cost
is temporary or other than temporary on a security-by-security basis. The objective of other-than-temporary impairment analysis under
U.S. GAAP is to determine whether the holder of an investment in a debt or equity security for which changes in fair value are not regularly
recognized in earnings should recognize a loss in earnings when the investment is impaired. An investment is impaired if the fair value of the
investment is less than its amortized cost.

        At September 30, 2009, the Company's valuation of two of its three debt instrument investments resulted in an unrealized gain of
$6.3 million ($4.0 million, net of taxes), which was recorded in the three months ended September 30, 2009, primarily due to the improvement
in the credit spread of Genworth. Also, as of September 30, 2009, the Company continues to receive all interest and dividend payments from its
three debt instrument investments.

        At September 30, 2009, the Company's valuation of its two perpetual preferred stock investments resulted in the recognition of
other-than-temporary impairment of $2.3 million ($1.4 million, net of taxes), which was recorded in the three months ended September 30,
2009. This impairment was primarily due to AMBAC's discontinuance of its monthly dividend payments on its outstanding auction market
preferred shares beginning August 1, 2009. Based on this event, the Company updated its valuation to include a zero coupon rate for these
securities. The Company also recognized other-than-temporary impairment of $0.9 million ($0.6 million, net of taxes) in the three months ended
September 30, 2009 on its Ballantyne debt instrument investment, primarily due to the deterioration in the credit spread of Ballantyne.

        See Note 12, "Fair Value Measurements," for details on the inputs and valuation methodology used to calculate the estimated fair value of
these investments.

        The Company continues to closely monitor developments in the market for auction rate securities including the specific securities in which
it has invested. At September 30, 2009, the securities issuers that were rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. had ratings that ranged from
Baa3 to Ca2 and ratings by Standard & Poor's, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., that ranged from BBB to C. At September 30,
2009, neither AMBAC nor Primus had a rating by Moody's and Primus was not rated by Standards & Poor's. The Company believes that it has
sufficient liquidity to meet its operating cash needs without the sale of these securities.

        If credit or liquidity conditions relating to these securities or the issuers worsen, the Company may recognize additional
other-than-temporary impairments, which would result in the recognition of additional losses on its condensed consolidated statement of
operations.
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 (6) Accounts Receivable Securitization Program

        The Company and a group of its U.S. subsidiaries maintain an accounts receivable securitization program with a bank and an issuer of
commercial paper administered by the bank. At September 30, 2009, the maximum purchase limit for receivables interests was $160.0 million
and the program had an expiration date of December 2, 2012. This program includes a bank financing commitment that must be renewed
annually prior to the expiration date. The bank commitment is scheduled to expire on December 4, 2009. The Company is currently seeking an
additional 364 day renewal of the bank commitment prior to its expiration. While the bank is not obligated to renew the bank financing
commitment, the Company has negotiated annual renewals since the commencement of the program in 2001.

        The amounts available from time to time under the program may be less than $160.0 million subject to the level of the eligible assets
included in the U.S. accounts receivable portfolio. The level of eligible assets can be impacted by a number of factors, including, but not limited
to, accounts receivable balances, the Company's credit rating, the Company's receivables collection experience and the creditworthiness of the
Company's customers. During 2009, the level of eligible assets available under the program declined primarily due to lower accounts receivable
balances and, to a lesser extent, the Company's current credit rating. As a result, the amounts available to the Company under the program
decreased to approximately $79.2 million at September 30, 2009 from approximately $143.0 million available at December 31, 2008. Although
the Company does not believe that these restrictive provisions presently materially restrict its operations, a breach of one or more of these
restrictive provisions could result in a further decline in, or the elimination of, amounts available under the program.

        At December 31, 2008, the Company had $80.0 million outstanding under this program. In January 2009, the Company utilized an
additional $51.0 million available to it under this program. Subsequently, in February 2009, the Company repaid the entire $131.0 million
outstanding amount under this program utilizing funds available from its 12% Senior Notes issuance. As of September 30, 2009, the Company
had no amounts outstanding under this program.

        The costs associated with the receivables program are reflected in other expense, net, on the Company's condensed consolidated statements
of operations and were $0.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and $2.1 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2008.

        The receivables program contains financial covenants relating to interest coverage and debt leverage similar to those contained in the
Company's revolving credit facility. The Company was in compliance with these covenants at September 30, 2009.
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 (7) Inventories

        The following table presents details of the Company's inventories and the reduction of certain inventories to a LIFO basis:

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Inventories (at FIFO, which
approximates replacement
value):
Raw materials $ 92.3 $ 98.7
Work in process 112.6 116.6
Finished goods 357.5 405.0

Subtotal (at FIFO) 562.4 620.3
Reduction of certain
inventories to LIFO basis (49.2) (56.0)

Total $ 513.2 $ 564.3

        The Company determines the value of non-equipment U.S. inventories by the last-in, first-out or LIFO inventory method. U.S. inventories
determined by the LIFO method were $116.1 million at September 30, 2009 and $134.9 million at December 31, 2008.

 (8) Property and Equipment, net

        The following table details the Company's property and equipment, net, at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Land and improvements $ 50.0 $ 45.4
Buildings 608.1 565.1
Machinery and equipment 2,334.0 2,179.0
Other property and equipment 132.1 130.4
Construction-in-progress 53.1 123.9

3,177.3 3,043.8
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,139.4) (1,992.4)

Property and equipment, net $ 1,037.9 $ 1,051.4
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(8) Property and Equipment, net (Continued)

        The following table details the Company's interest cost capitalized and depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest cost capitalized $ 1.1 $ 2.5 $ 5.4 $ 7.7
Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment 36.2 35.5 105.0 109.7

 (9) Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets

Goodwill

        The following table details the Company's goodwill balance at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 by the Company's segment
reporting structure.

Balance at
December 31,

2008
Goodwill
Acquired

Foreign
Currency
Translation
and Other

Balance at
September 30,

2009
Food Packaging $ 381.4 $ � $ 2.2 $ 383.6
Food Solutions 147.2 � 0.9 148.1
Protective Packaging 1,254.7 � 7.5 1,262.2
Other 154.8 0.5 0.5 155.8

Total $ 1,938.1 $ 0.5 $ 11.1 $ 1,949.7

        The Company has seven reporting units that are included in the Company's segment reporting structure, six of which have significant
goodwill balances allocated to them. The six reporting units with goodwill balances are: Food Packaging, Food Solutions, Protective Packaging,
Shrink Packaging (included in the Protective Packaging segment) and Specialty Materials and Medical Applications (included in the Other
category).

        The Company tests goodwill for impairment on a reporting unit basis annually during the fourth quarter of each year and at other times if
events or circumstances exist that indicate the carrying value of goodwill may potentially no longer be recoverable. In the first quarter of 2009,
due to a decline in the Company's Protective Packaging, Shrink Packaging and Specialty Materials reporting units' forecasted operating results,
and to a lesser extent, a decline in the Company's EBITDA (defined as earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization)
multiples and the price of the Company's common stock since December 31, 2008, the Company performed an interim goodwill impairment
assessment for these three reporting units at March 31, 2009. The Company completed step one of its interim impairment test and the fair value
analysis for goodwill and concluded that there were no impairments present, and accordingly no impairment charge was recorded as of
March 31, 2009.
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(9) Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets (Continued)

        In the second quarter of 2009, due to a further decline in the Company's Specialty Materials reporting unit's forecasted operating results, the
Company performed an interim goodwill impairment assessment and completed step one of its interim impairment test and fair value analysis
for goodwill related to this reporting unit. The Company concluded that there was no impairment present and accordingly no impairment charge
was recorded as of June 30, 2009.

        In the third quarter of 2009, the Company determined that there were no events or changes in circumstances that occurred that would
indicate that the fair value of any of the Company's reporting units may be below their carrying value. The Company reviewed various factors
consistent with prior quarters' analyses. These factors included such items as the Company's reporting units' forecasted operating results, its
common stock price and its EBITDA multiples, all of which have either remained constant or have improved since June 30, 2009. As a result,
the Company was not required to complete a step one interim impairment test and fair value analysis for goodwill related to any of its reporting
units.

        Although the Company determined that there was no goodwill impairment through the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the future
occurrence of a potential indicator of impairment, such as a decrease in expected earnings, adverse equity market conditions, a decline in current
market multiples, a decline in the price of the Company's common stock, a significant adverse change in legal factors or business climate, an
adverse action or assessment by a regulator, unanticipated competition, strategic decisions made in response to economic or competitive
conditions, or a more-likely-than-not expectation that a reporting unit or a significant portion of a reporting unit will be sold or disposed of,
could require an interim assessment for some or all of the reporting units after the next required annual assessment in the fourth quarter of 2009.
In the event of an adverse change of the natures described above, the Company may be required to recognize a non-cash impairment of
goodwill, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Identifiable Intangible Assets

        The following table summarizes the Company's identifiable intangible assets with definite and indefinite useful lives.

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Gross carrying value $ 115.8 $ 113.7
Accumulated amortization (55.2) (49.5)

Total $ 60.6 $ 64.2

        These identifiable intangible assets are included in other assets, net, on the condensed consolidated balance sheets and include $8.9 million
of trademarks that the Company has determined to have an indefinite useful life.
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(9) Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets (Continued)

        Amortization expense of identifiable intangible assets was $3.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and $3.3 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2008, $8.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and $8.1 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2008. These expenses are included in marketing, administrative and development expenses on the condensed consolidated
statements of operations.

        Assuming no change in the gross carrying value of identifiable intangible assets from the value at September 30, 2009, the remaining
estimated future amortization expense is as follows:

2009 $ 2.8
2010 10.3
2011 7.3
2012 5.7
2013 4.9
Thereafter 20.7

Total $ 51.7

 (10) Debt and Credit Facilities

        The Company's total debt outstanding consisted of the amounts set forth on the following table:

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Short-term borrowings $ 28.4 $ 37.6
Current portion of long-term debt:
6.95% Senior Notes matured May 2009 � 136.7
Other current portion of long-term debt 5.6 14.8

Total current debt 34.0 189.1
5.625% Senior Notes due July 2013, less unamortized discount of $0.6 in 2009 and $0.7 in 2008 399.4 399.3
12% Senior Notes due February 2014(1) 300.9 �
7.875% Senior Notes due June 2017, less unamortized discount of $8.4 million in 2009 391.6 �
6.875% Senior Notes due July 2033, less unamortized discount of $1.5 in 2009 and 2008 448.5 448.5
3% Convertible Senior Notes redeemed July 2009 � 431.3
Other 25.0 10.8

Total long-term debt, less current portion $ 1,565.4 $ 1,289.9

Total debt $ 1,599.4 $ 1,479.0

(1)
Amount includes adjustments due to interest rate swaps. See Note 11, "Derivatives and Hedging Activities," for further discussion.
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(10) Debt and Credit Facilities (Continued)

Senior Notes

Redemption of 3% Convertible Senior Notes due 2033

        On July 19, 2009, the Company redeemed all $431.3 million of its 3% Convertible Senior Notes due 2033. The total redemption cash
payment of $433.9 million included a 0.429% call premium of $1.9 million and accrued and unpaid interest of $0.7 million. The Company used
net proceeds of $384.3 million from its June 2009 issuance of 7.875% Senior Notes due June 2017 plus available cash of $49.6 million to
redeem these senior notes. In connection with the redemption, the Company recorded a $3.4 million pre-tax loss on the redemption of debt in the
third quarter of 2009. This loss represented the 0.429% call premium mentioned above of $1.9 million and a write-down of the remaining debt
issuance costs related to the issuance of these senior notes in July 2003 of $1.5 million.

7.875% Senior Notes due 2017

        In June 2009, the Company completed an offering of $400.0 million of senior unsecured notes due 2017 with a coupon of 7.875%. The net
proceeds from this issuance after deducting the discount of $8.7 million and debt issuance costs of $7.0 million were $384.3 million. These
senior notes rank equally with all of the Company's other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness from time to time outstanding.

12% Senior Notes

        In February 2009, the Company issued $300 million aggregate principal amount of 12% senior unsecured notes due 2014 in a private
offering.

        Upon receipt of these funds, the Company repaid amounts outstanding under its revolving credit facility and its accounts receivable
securitization program and retained the balance in cash and cash equivalents on its condensed consolidated balance sheet.

6.95% Senior Notes

        In May 2009, the Company retired the remaining outstanding 6.95% Senior Notes on their maturity date. The $136.7 million face value of
these senior notes, along with $4.7 million of accrued interest, was paid primarily with available cash.

18

Edgar Filing: SEALED AIR CORP/DE - Form 10-Q

29



Table of Contents

SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in tables are in millions, except per share data)

(10) Debt and Credit Facilities (Continued)

Lines of Credit

        The following table summarizes the Company's available committed and uncommitted lines of credit, including the revolving credit facility
and the ANZ facility, which are discussed below.

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Used lines of credit $ 43.1 $ 46.7
Unused lines of credit 846.7 773.4

Total available lines of credit $ 889.8 $ 820.1

Available lines of credit�committed $ 620.3 $ 588.8
Available lines of credit�uncommitted 269.5 231.3

Total available lines of credit $ 889.8 $ 820.1

        The Company's principal credit lines were committed and consisted of the revolving credit facility and the ANZ facility. The Company is
not subject to any material compensating balance requirements in connection with its lines of credit.

Revolving Credit Facilities

        The Revolving Credit Facility�The Company has a $500.0 million unsecured multi-currency revolving credit facility, which has an
expiration date of July 26, 2012.

        The revolving credit facility commitments include $28.0 million provided by Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., a subsidiary of Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc. As a result of the bankruptcy filing of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries in September 2008,
Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. is no longer funding borrowing requests under the revolving credit facility. At September 30, 2009, the total
amount available and unused under the revolving credit facility was $472.0 million.

        The terms of the revolving credit facility include a requirement that, upon the occurrence of specified events that would adversely affect the
Settlement agreement in the Grace bankruptcy proceedings or would materially increase the Company's liability in respect of the Grace
bankruptcy or the asbestos liability arising from the Cryovac transaction, the Company would be required to repay any amounts outstanding
under the revolving credit facility, or refinance the facility, within 60 days. See "Cryovac Transaction Commitments and Contingencies," of
Note 14, "Commitments and Contingencies," for further discussion.

        During 2009, the Company borrowed funds from time to time under its revolving credit facility. Interest expense related to the funds drawn
in 2009 was $0.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The related weighted average interest rate for the borrowings was
2.9%. At September 30, 2009 there were no amounts outstanding under this facility.

        ANZ Facility�The Company has a 170.0 million Australian dollar, dual-currency revolving credit facility due March 2010, which was
equivalent to $148.3 million at September 30, 2009. A syndicate of
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(10) Debt and Credit Facilities (Continued)

banks made this facility available to a group of the Company's Australian and New Zealand subsidiaries for general corporate purposes,
including refinancing of previously outstanding indebtedness. The Company may re-borrow amounts repaid under the ANZ facility from time to
time prior to the expiration or earlier termination of the facility. The Company plans to renew or replace the ANZ facility prior to its expiration
date. However, the Company cannot give assurance that it will be able to renew or replace this facility. The Company has not utilized this
facility in 2009, and at September 30, 2009 there were no amounts outstanding under this facility.

Covenants

        Each issue of the Company's outstanding senior notes imposes limitations on the Company's operations and those of specified subsidiaries.
The principal limitations restrict liens, sale and leaseback transactions and mergers, acquisitions and dispositions. The revolving credit facility
contains financial covenants relating to interest coverage, debt leverage and minimum liquidity and restrictions on the creation of liens, the
incurrence of additional indebtedness, acquisitions, mergers and consolidations, asset sales, and amendments to the Settlement agreement
discussed above. The ANZ facility contains financial covenants relating to debt leverage, interest coverage and tangible net worth and
restrictions on the creation of liens, the incurrence of additional indebtedness and asset sales, in each case relating to the Australian and New
Zealand subsidiaries of the Company that are borrowers under the facility. At September 30, 2009 the Company was in compliance with the
above financial covenants and limitations, as applicable.

 (11) Derivatives and Hedging Activities

        The Company reports all derivative instruments on its balance sheet at fair value and establishes criteria for designation and effectiveness of
transactions entered into for hedging purposes.

        The Company is exposed to market risk, such as fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and changes in interest rates. To manage
the volatility relating to these exposures, the Company enters into various derivative instruments from time to time under its risk management
policies. The Company designates derivative instruments as hedges on a transaction basis to support hedge accounting. The changes in fair value
of these hedging instruments offset in part or in whole corresponding changes in the fair value or cash flows of the underlying exposures being
hedged. The Company assesses the initial and ongoing effectiveness of its hedging relationships in accordance with its policy. The Company
does not purchase, hold or sell derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The Company's practice is to terminate derivative
transactions if the underlying asset or liability matures or is sold or terminated, or if the Company determines the underlying forecasted
transaction is no longer probable of occurring.

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

        The Company is exposed to market risk, such as fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company's subsidiaries have foreign
currency exchange exposure from buying and selling in currencies other than their functional currencies. The primary purposes of the
Company's foreign
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(11) Derivatives and Hedging Activities (Continued)

currency hedging activities are to manage the potential changes in value associated with the amounts receivable or payable on transactions
denominated in foreign currencies and to minimize the impact of the changes in foreign currencies related to certain foreign currency
denominated interest-bearing intercompany loans and receivables and payables. The changes in fair value of these contracts are recognized in
other expense, net, on the condensed consolidated statements of operations and are largely offset by the remeasurement of the underlying foreign
currency denominated items. These contracts had original maturities of less than 12 months.

        The Company was party to foreign currency forward contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $468.9 million maturing through
March 2010 at September 30, 2009 and $345.9 million maturing through December 2008 at September 30, 2008. At December 31, 2008, the
Company was party to foreign currency forward contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $421.6 million maturing through March 2009.

        The estimated fair value of these contracts, which represents the estimated net payments that would be paid or that would be received by the
Company in the event of termination of these contracts, based on the then current foreign currency exchange rates, was a net liability of
$0.3 million at September 30, 2009. At December 31, 2008, the estimated fair value of these contracts was a net asset of $12.8 million. The
related net gains and losses were largely offset by the net gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of the underlying foreign currency
denominated items.

Cash Flow Hedges

        The Company records gains and losses on foreign currency forward contracts qualifying as cash flow hedges in other comprehensive
income, to the extent that these hedges are effective and until it recognizes the underlying transactions in net earnings, at which time it
recognizes these gains and losses in other expense, net, on the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

        The amount of pre-tax gains (losses) reclassified from other comprehensive income to net earnings related to these contracts was
$0.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and $(0.3) million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and
$(0.4) million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008.

        Net unrealized after tax gains (losses) related to these contracts that were included in other comprehensive income for the three months and
nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were immaterial. The unrealized amounts in other comprehensive income will fluctuate based
on changes in the fair value of open contracts during each reporting period.

Interest Rate Swaps

        From time to time, the Company may use interest rate swaps to manage its mix of fixed and floating rates on its outstanding indebtedness.

        At September 30, 2009, the Company had outstanding interest rate swaps with a total notional amount of $200.0 million that qualified and
were designated as fair value hedges. The Company entered into these interest rate swaps to effectively convert a portion of its 12% Senior
Notes into
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(11) Derivatives and Hedging Activities (Continued)

floating rate debt. The Company recorded a mark to market adjustment to record an increase of $0.9 million at September 30, 2009 in the fair
value of the 12% Senior Notes due to changes in interest rates and an offsetting increase to other assets at September 30, 2009 to record the fair
value of the related interest rate swaps. There was no ineffective portion of the hedges recognized in earnings during the period.

        In 2009, under the terms of the $200.0 million outstanding interest rate swap agreements, the Company received interest at a fixed rate and
paid interest at variable rates that were based on the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR. As a result, interest expense was
reduced by $0.3 million in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009.

Other Derivative Instruments

        The Company may use other derivative instruments from time to time, such as foreign exchange options to manage exposure due to foreign
exchange rates and currency swaps related to access to additional sources of international financing. These instruments can potentially limit
foreign exchange exposure by swapping borrowings denominated in one currency for borrowings denominated in another currency. At
September 30, 2009, the Company had no foreign exchange options or currency swap agreements outstanding.

        See Note 12, "Fair Value Measurements," for a discussion of the inputs and valuation techniques used by the Company to determine the fair
value of its outstanding derivative instruments.

        The following table details the fair value of the Company's derivative instruments included in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Fair Value of Asset
Derivatives(1)

Fair Value of (Liability)
Derivatives(1)

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign currency forward contracts $ 0.4 $ � $ (0.3) $ (0.1)

Interest rate swaps $ 0.9 $ � $ � $ �

Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign currency forward contracts $ 0.3 14.6 $ (0.6) (1.8)

Total $ 1.6 $ 14.6 $ (0.9) $ (1.9)

(1)
Asset derivatives were included in other current assets for the foreign currency forward contracts and other assets for the interest rate
swaps. Liability derivatives were included in other current liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheets.
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(11) Derivatives and Hedging Activities (Continued)

        The following table details the effect of the Company's derivative instruments on the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in

Net Earnings on Derivatives(1)
Three Months

Ended
September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps $ 0.3 � $ 0.3 $ (2.1)
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign currency forward contracts (14.6) 4.1 (15.9) (2.1)
Foreign currency option contracts � � � (0.2)

Total $ (14.3) $ 4.1 $ (15.6) $ (4.4)

(1)
Amounts recognized on the foreign currency forward and option contracts were included in other expense. Amounts recognized on the
interest rate swaps were included in interest expense on the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

 (12) Fair Value Measurements

        In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs to the extent possible and considers counterparty credit risk in its assessment of fair value. Fair value measurement should
be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal or most advantageous
market. When considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between
observable and unobservable inputs, which are categorized in one of the following levels:

�
Level 1 Inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities accessible to the reporting entity
at the measurement date.

�
Level 2 Inputs: Other than quoted prices included in Level 1 inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
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(12) Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

�
Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability used to measure fair value to the extent that observable inputs
are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at
measurement date.

September 30, 2009
Total

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash equivalents $ 47.9 $ � $ 47.9 $ �

Non-current investments�available-for-sale
securities $ 13.8 $ � $ � $ 13.8

Derivative financial instruments net asset
(liability):
Interest rate swaps $ 0.9 $ � $ 0.9 $ �

Foreign currency forward contracts $ (0.2) $ � $ (0.2) $ �

December 31, 2008
Total

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash equivalents $ 32.1 $ 1.9 $ 30.2 $ �

Non-current investments�available-for-sale
securities $ 10.7 $ � $ � $ 10.7

Derivative financial instruments net asset:
Foreign currency forward contracts $ 12.7 $ � $ 12.7 $ �

        The following table shows a reconciliation of the Company's available-for-sale securities, which are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis using Level 3 inputs, as of September 30, 2009:

Estimated fair value as of December 31, 2008 $ 10.7
Other-than-temporary impairment included in earnings through
September 30, 2009 (3.2)
Unrealized gains recorded in other comprehensive income
through September 30, 2009 6.3

Estimated fair value as of September 30, 2009 $ 13.8

Cash Equivalents

        The Company's cash equivalents at September 30, 2009 consisted of investments in commercial paper of $40.0 million and money market
funds of $7.9 million (fair value determined using Level 2 inputs). The Company's cash equivalents at December 31, 2008 included time
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deposits (fair value determined using Level 1 inputs) and commercial paper (fair value determined using Level 2 inputs). Since these are
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase, they present negligible risk of
changes in fair value due to changes in interest rates.
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(12) Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Non-current Investments�Available-for-Sale Securities

        The Company's non-current investments�available-for-sale securities consist of auction rate securities, which are recorded at fair value on
the condensed consolidated balance sheets using an income approach valuation technique based on the Company's observations by analysis and
interpretation from related securities in secondary markets (Level 3).

        Since these auction rate securities do not currently have readily available or observable prices, the Company used the income approach to
determine the fair value of these securities. The Company calculated an estimated fair value for these investments using a bond calculation. The
valuation methodology included the following inputs and assumptions:

Maturity�The Company's debt instruments investments have stated maturities that exceed 13 years, while the other investments are
non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock investments with no maturity dates. The Company's valuation model assumes that auctions
of all of the investments will resume or that a financial resolution will otherwise be achieved within the next 10 years (the "workout
period").

Coupon�All of these investments are variable rate instruments, with interest rates resetting every 28 days based on a pre-determined
formula. Since the workout period is assumed to be 10 years, the Company used the 10-year U.S. dollar interest rate swap rate plus an
additional issuer credit spread to reflect a fixed coupon for the debt instruments over the 10-year period. The Company's coupon
assumptions for its December 31, 2008 fair value valuation included a zero coupon rate for the two perpetual preferred stock
investments since AMBAC (the securities' issuer) could have cancelled its dividends on its common stock. On August 1, 2009,
AMBAC discontinued its dividend payments on these securities.

Yield-to-Maturity�The Company used the 10-year U.S. dollar interest rate swap rate plus credit default swap spreads for each issuer.
The Company also included an additional liquidity risk premium of 100 basis points in its yield-to-maturity assumption.

        The Company's valuation methodology calculations are subjective and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect the Company's estimates.

        See Note 5, "Available-for-Sale Investments," for additional information.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts and Interest Rate Swaps

        The Company's foreign currency forward contracts are recorded at fair value on the condensed consolidated balance sheets using the
income approach valuation technique based on observable market inputs (Level 2).

        Observable market inputs used in the calculation of the fair value of foreign currency forward contracts include foreign currency spot and
forward rates. In addition, other pricing data quoted by various banks and foreign currency dealers involving identical or comparable instruments
are included.
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(12) Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

        The Company's interest rate swaps are recorded at fair value on the condensed consolidated balance sheet using the income approach
valuation technique based on observable market inputs (Level 2).

        Observable market inputs used in the calculation of the fair value of interest rate swaps include pricing data from counterparties to these
swaps and a comparison is made to other market data including U.S. Treasury yields and swap spreads involving identical or comparable
derivative instruments.

        Counterparties to these foreign currency forward contracts and interest rate swaps are rated at least A-by Standard & Poor's and A3 by
Moody's. None of these counterparties experienced any significant ratings downgrades in the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The fair
value generally reflects the estimated amounts that the Company would receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date.

Other Financial Instruments

        The following financial instruments are recorded at fair value or at amounts that approximate fair value: (1) receivables, net, (2) certain
other current assets, (3) accounts payable and (4) other current liabilities. The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for
the above financial instruments closely approximate their fair value due to the short-term nature of these assets and liabilities.

        Other liabilities that are at carrying value on the Company's consolidated balance sheets include the Company's senior notes. To calculate
the fair value of the Company's senior notes at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 the Company utilizes a market approach. Due to
their limited investor base and the relatively small face value of each issue of the senior notes, they may not be actively traded on the date the
fair value is calculated. Therefore, the Company utilizes prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving similar
securities, reflecting U.S. Treasury yields to calculate the yield to maturity and the price on each of the Company's senior notes. These inputs are
provided by an independent third party and are considered to be Level 2 inputs as described above.

        The Company derived the fair value estimates of its various other debt instruments by evaluating the nature and terms of each instrument,
considering prevailing economic and market conditions, and examining the cost of similar debt offered at the balance sheet date. The Company
also incorporates its credit default swap rates and currency specific swap rates in the valuation of each debt instrument, as applicable.

        These estimates are subjective and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment, and therefore the Company cannot determine
them with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the Company's estimates.
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(12) Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

        The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's debt at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were as follows:

September 30, 2009 December 31, 2008
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

6.95% Senior Notes matured May 2009 $ � $ � $ 136.7 $ 135.3
3% Convertible Senior Notes redeemed in July 2009 � � 431.3 374.9
5.625% Senior Notes due 2013 399.4 418.0 399.3 320.0
12% Senior Notes due February 2014(1) 300.9 323.1 � �
7.875% Senior Notes due June 2017 391.6 418.0 � �
6.875% Senior Notes due 2033 448.5 387.0 448.5 315.0
Other foreign loans 45.0 50.4 48.5 48.4
Other loans 14.0 25.7 14.7 11.2

Total debt $ 1,599.4 $ 1,622.2 $ 1,479.0 $ 1,204.8

(1)
The carrying amount and fair value of such debt includes adjustments for interest rates swaps. See Note 11, "Derivatives and Hedging
Activities."

        The fair value of the debt in the table above differs from the carrying amount due to changes in interest rates based on market conditions as
of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008. The Company's fixed rate debt was $1,571.0 million at September 30, 2009 and
$1,430.9 million at December 31, 2008. Generally, the fair value of fixed rate debt will increase as interest rates fall and decrease as interest
rates rise. A hypothetical 10% decrease in interest rates would result in an increase of $69.3 million in the fair value of the total debt balance at
September 30, 2009. These changes in the fair value of the Company's fixed rate debt do not alter the Company's interest payment obligations or
its obligation to repay the outstanding principal amount of such debt.

 (13) Income Taxes

Effective Income Tax Rate and Income Tax Provision

        The Company's effective income tax rate was 23.6% for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 26.2% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009. The Company's effective income tax rate was a benefit for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 21.5% for the
nine months ended September 30, 2008.

        The Company's income tax provision for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2009 included benefits related to the
utilization of income tax credits for which no benefit had previously been recognized for financial reporting purposes, partially offset by an
increase in reserves relating to uncertain tax positions.

        For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2009, the Company's effective income tax rate was lower than the statutory
U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% primarily due to the lower
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(13) Income Taxes (Continued)

net effective income tax rate on foreign earnings and income tax benefits described above, partially offset by the increase in reserves described
above and state income taxes.

        The Company's income tax provision for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 included the following income tax benefits:

�
a reduction in the estimated cost of repatriating certain foreign earnings;

�
a change in assertion made with regard to certain undistributed foreign earnings; and

�
the utilization of loss carryforwards in a foreign jurisdiction for which no benefit had previously been recognized for
financial reporting purposes.

        For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company's effective income tax rate was lower than the statutory
U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% primarily due to the lower net effective income tax rate on foreign earnings, as well as the income tax
benefits described above, partially offset by state income taxes.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

        The Company is providing the following disclosures related to the unrecognized tax benefits and the effect on the effective income tax rate
if recognized.

Gross Net
Unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2009 $ 73.2 $ 63.5
Additions based on tax positions of prior years 5.8 5.8
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (1.1) (1.0)

Unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, 2009 $ 77.9 $ 68.3

        If the unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, 2009 were recognized, the Company's income tax provision would be decreased by
$68.3 million, resulting in a substantially lower effective tax rate. Other than the Settlement agreement, whose timing is uncertain and out of the
Company's control, there are no known tax positions reasonably possible to change over the next twelve months that would result in a material
change in the Company's unrecognized tax benefits. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax provision on the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

 (14) Commitments and Contingencies

Cryovac Transaction Commitments and Contingencies
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Settlement Agreement and Related Costs

        On November 27, 2002, the Company reached an agreement in principle with the Committees appointed to represent asbestos claimants in
the bankruptcy case of W. R. Grace & Co., known as Grace, to resolve all current and future asbestos-related claims made against the Company
and its affiliates in connection with the Cryovac transaction described below (as memorialized by the parties in the Settlement agreement and as
approved by the Bankruptcy Court, the "Settlement agreement"). The
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(14) Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Settlement agreement will also resolve the fraudulent transfer claims and successor liability claims, as well as indemnification claims by
Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc. and affiliated companies, that had been made against the Company in connection with the Cryovac
transaction. On December 3, 2002, the Company's Board of Directors approved the agreement in principle. The Company received notice that
both of the Committees had approved the agreement in principle as of December 5, 2002. The parties subsequently signed the definitive
Settlement agreement as of November 10, 2003 consistent with the terms of the agreement in principle. For a description of the Cryovac
transaction, asbestos-related claims and the parties involved, see "Cryovac Transaction" and "Discussion of Cryovac Transaction Commitments
and Contingencies" below.

        The Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $850.1 million as a result of the Settlement agreement in its consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2002. The charge consisted of the following items:

�
a charge of $512.5 million covering a cash payment that the Company will be required under the Settlement agreement to
make upon the effectiveness of an appropriate plan of reorganization in the Grace bankruptcy. Because the Company cannot
predict when a plan of reorganization may become effective, the Company recorded this liability as a current liability on the
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2002. Under the terms of the Settlement agreement, this amount accrues interest
at a 5.5% annual rate from December 21, 2002 to the date of payment. The Company has recorded this interest in interest
expense on the consolidated statements of operations and in Settlement agreement and related accrued interest on the
consolidated balance sheets. The accrued interest, which is compounded annually, was $224.5 million at September 30, 2009
and $195.3 million at December 31, 2008.

�
a non-cash charge of $321.5 million representing the fair market value at the date the Company recorded the charge of nine
million shares of the Company's common stock expected to be issued under the Settlement agreement upon the effectiveness
of an appropriate plan of reorganization in the Grace bankruptcy, which was adjusted to eighteen million shares due to the
two-for-one stock split in March 2007. These shares are subject to customary anti-dilution provisions that adjust for the
effects of stock splits, stock dividends and other events affecting the Company's common stock. The fair market value of the
Company's common stock was $35.72 per pre-split share ($17.86 post-split) as of the close of business on December 5,
2002. The Company recorded this amount on its consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2002 as follows: $0.9 million
representing the aggregate par value of these shares of common stock reserved for issuance related to the Settlement
agreement, and the remaining $320.6 million, representing the excess of the aggregate fair market value over the aggregate
par value of these common shares, in additional paid-in capital. The diluted earnings per common share calculations for the
September 30, 2009 and 2008 periods reflect the eighteen million shares of common stock reserved for issuance related to
the Settlement agreement.

�
$16.1 million of legal and related fees as of December 31, 2002.

        Settlement agreement and related costs reflected legal and related fees for Settlement-related matters of $0.4 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2009 and $1.2 million for the nine
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months ended September 30, 2009, which are included in other expense, net, on the Company's condensed consolidated statements of
operations.

Cryovac Transaction

        On March 31, 1998, the Company completed a multi-step transaction that brought the Cryovac packaging business and the former Sealed
Air Corporation's business under the common ownership of the Company. These businesses operate as subsidiaries of the Company, and the
Company acts as a holding company. As part of that transaction, the parties separated the Cryovac packaging business, which previously had
been held by various direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company, from the remaining businesses previously held by the Company. The
parties then arranged for the contribution of these remaining businesses to a company now known as W. R. Grace & Co., and the Company
distributed the Grace shares to the Company's stockholders. As a result, W. R. Grace & Co. became a separate publicly owned company. The
Company recapitalized its outstanding shares of common stock into a new common stock and a new convertible preferred stock. A subsidiary of
the Company then merged into the former Sealed Air Corporation, which became a subsidiary of the Company and changed its name to Sealed
Air Corporation (US).

Discussion of Cryovac Transaction Commitments and Contingencies

        In connection with the Cryovac transaction, Grace and its subsidiaries retained all liabilities arising out of their operations before the
Cryovac transaction, whether accruing or occurring before or after the Cryovac transaction, other than liabilities arising from or relating to
Cryovac's operations. Among the liabilities retained by Grace are liabilities relating to asbestos-containing products previously manufactured or
sold by Grace's subsidiaries prior to the Cryovac transaction, including its primary U.S. operating subsidiary, W. R. Grace & Co.�Conn., which
has operated for decades and has been a subsidiary of Grace since the Cryovac transaction. The Cryovac transaction agreements provided that,
should any claimant seek to hold the Company or any of its subsidiaries responsible for liabilities retained by Grace or its subsidiaries, including
the asbestos-related liabilities, Grace and its subsidiaries would indemnify and defend the Company.

        Since the beginning of 2000, the Company has been served with a number of lawsuits alleging that, as a result of the Cryovac transaction,
the Company is responsible for alleged asbestos liabilities of Grace and its subsidiaries, some of which were also named as co-defendants in
some of these actions. Among these lawsuits are several purported class actions and a number of personal injury lawsuits. Some plaintiffs seek
damages for personal injury or wrongful death, while others seek medical monitoring, environmental remediation or remedies related to an attic
insulation product. Neither the former Sealed Air Corporation nor Cryovac, Inc. ever produced or sold any of the asbestos-containing materials
that are the subjects of these cases. None of these cases has reached resolution through judgment, settlement or otherwise. As discussed below,
Grace's Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding has stayed all of these cases.

        While the allegations in these actions directed to the Company vary, these actions all appear to allege that the transfer of the Cryovac
business as part of the Cryovac transaction was a fraudulent transfer or gave rise to successor liability. Under a theory of successor liability,
plaintiffs with claims
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against Grace and its subsidiaries may attempt to hold the Company liable for liabilities that arose with respect to activities conducted prior to
the Cryovac transaction by W. R. Grace & Co.�Conn. or other Grace subsidiaries. A transfer would be a fraudulent transfer if the transferor
received less than reasonably equivalent value and the transferor was insolvent or was rendered insolvent by the transfer, was engaged or was
about to engage in a business for which its assets constitute unreasonably small capital, or intended to incur or believed that it would incur debts
beyond its ability to pay as they mature. A transfer may also be fraudulent if it was made with actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud creditors.
If a court found any transfers in connection with the Cryovac transaction to be fraudulent transfers, the Company could be required to return the
property or its value to the transferor or could be required to fund liabilities of Grace or its subsidiaries for the benefit of their creditors,
including asbestos claimants. The Company has reached an agreement in principle and subsequently signed the Settlement agreement, described
below, that is expected to resolve all these claims.

        In the Joint Proxy Statement furnished to their respective stockholders in connection with the Cryovac transaction, both parties to the
transaction stated that it was their belief that Grace and its subsidiaries were adequately capitalized and would be adequately capitalized after the
Cryovac transaction and that none of the transfers contemplated to occur in the Cryovac transaction would be a fraudulent transfer. They also
stated their belief that the Cryovac transaction complied with other relevant laws. However, if a court applying the relevant legal standards had
reached conclusions adverse to the Company, these determinations could have had a materially adverse effect on the Company's consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

        On April 2, 2001, Grace and a number of its subsidiaries filed petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in
the U.S. Bankruptcy Court in the District of Delaware. Grace stated that the filing was made in response to a sharply increasing number of
asbestos claims since 1999.

        In connection with its Chapter 11 filing, Grace filed an application with the Bankruptcy Court seeking to stay, among others, all actions
brought against the Company and specified subsidiaries related to alleged asbestos liabilities of Grace and its subsidiaries or alleging fraudulent
transfer claims. The court issued an order dated May 3, 2001, which was modified on January 22, 2002, under which the court stayed all the
filed or pending asbestos actions against the Company and, upon filing and service on the Company, all future asbestos actions. No further
proceedings involving the Company can occur in the actions that have been stayed except upon further order of the Bankruptcy Court.

        Committees appointed to represent asbestos claimants in Grace's bankruptcy case received the court's permission to pursue fraudulent
transfer and other claims against the Company and its subsidiary Cryovac, Inc., and against Fresenius, as discussed below. The claims against
Fresenius are based upon a 1996 transaction between Fresenius and W. R. Grace & Co.�Conn. Fresenius is not affiliated with the Company. In
March 2002, the court ordered that the issues of the solvency of Grace following the Cryovac transaction and whether Grace received reasonably
equivalent value in the Cryovac transaction would be tried on behalf of all of Grace's creditors. This proceeding was brought in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Delaware (Adv. No. 02-02210).

        In June 2002, the court permitted the U.S. government to intervene as a plaintiff in the fraudulent transfer proceeding, so that the U.S.
government could pursue allegations that environmental
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remediation expenses were underestimated or omitted in the solvency analyses of Grace conducted at the time of the Cryovac transaction. The
court also permitted Grace, which asserted that the Cryovac transaction was not a fraudulent transfer, to intervene in the proceeding. In July
2002, the court issued an interim ruling on the legal standards to be applied in the trial, holding, among other things, that, subject to specified
limitations, post-1998 claims should be considered in the solvency analysis of Grace. The Company believes that only claims and liabilities that
were known, or reasonably should have been known, at the time of the 1998 Cryovac transaction should be considered under the applicable
standard.

        With the fraudulent transfer trial set to commence on December 9, 2002, on November 27, 2002, the Company reached an agreement in
principle with the Committees prosecuting the claims against the Company and Cryovac, Inc., to resolve all current and future asbestos-related
claims arising from the Cryovac transaction. On the same day, the court entered an order confirming that the parties had reached an amicable
resolution of the disputes among the parties and that counsel for the Company and the Committees had agreed and bound the parties to the terms
of the agreement in principle. As discussed above, the agreement in principle called for payment of nine million shares of the Company's
common stock and $512.5 million in cash, plus interest on the cash payment at a 5.5% annual rate starting on December 21, 2002 and ending on
the effective date of an appropriate plan of reorganization in the Grace bankruptcy, when the Company is required to make the payment. These
shares are subject to customary anti-dilution provisions that adjust for the effects of stock splits, stock dividends and other events affecting the
Company's common stock, and as a result, the number of shares of the Company's common stock to be paid increased to eighteen million shares
upon the two-for-one stock split in March 2007. On December 3, 2002, the Company's Board of Directors approved the agreement in principle.
The Company received notice that both of the Committees had approved the agreement in principle as of December 5, 2002. The parties
subsequently signed the definitive Settlement agreement as of November 10, 2003 consistent with the terms of the agreement in principle. On
November 26, 2003, the parties jointly presented the definitive Settlement agreement to the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware for
approval. On Grace's motion to the U.S. District Court, that court transferred the motion to approve the Settlement agreement to the Bankruptcy
Court for disposition.

        On June 27, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court signed an order approving the Settlement agreement. Although Grace is not a party to the
Settlement agreement, under the terms of the order, Grace is directed to comply with the Settlement agreement subject to limited exceptions. The
order also provides that the Court will retain jurisdiction over any dispute involving the interpretation or enforcement of the terms and provisions
of the Settlement agreement. The Company expects that the Settlement agreement will become effective upon Grace's emergence from
bankruptcy pursuant to a plan of reorganization that is consistent with the terms of the Settlement agreement.

        On June 8, 2004, the Company filed a motion with the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware, where the fraudulent transfer trial
was pending, requesting that the court vacate the July 2002 interim ruling on the legal standards to be applied relating to the fraudulent transfer
claims against the Company. The Company was not challenging the Settlement agreement. The motion was filed as a protective measure in the
event that the Settlement agreement is ultimately not approved or
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implemented; however, the Company still expects that the Settlement agreement will become effective upon Grace's emergence from
bankruptcy with a plan of reorganization that is consistent with the terms of the Settlement agreement.

        On July 11, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order closing the proceeding brought in 2002 by the committees appointed to represent
asbestos claimants in the Grace bankruptcy proceeding against the Company without prejudice to the Company's right to reopen the matter and
renew in its sole discretion its prior motion to vacate the July 2002 interim ruling on the legal standards to be applied relating to the fraudulent
transfer claims against the Company.

        As a condition to the Company's obligation to make the payments required by the Settlement agreement, any final plan of reorganization
must be consistent with the terms of the Settlement agreement, including provisions for the trusts and releases referred to below and for an
injunction barring the prosecution of any asbestos-related claims against the Company and its affiliates. In that case, the Settlement agreement
will provide that, upon the effective date of the final plan of reorganization and payment of the shares and cash, all present and future
asbestos-related claims against the Company and its affiliates that arise from alleged asbestos liabilities of Grace and its affiliates (including
former affiliates that became affiliates of the Company through the Cryovac transaction) will be channeled to and become the responsibility of
one or more trusts to be established under Section 524(g) of the Bankruptcy Code as part of a final plan of reorganization in the Grace
bankruptcy. The Settlement agreement will also resolve all fraudulent transfer claims against the Company and its affiliates arising from the
Cryovac transaction as well as the Fresenius claims described below. The Settlement agreement will provide that the Company and its affiliates
will receive releases of all those claims upon payment. Under the agreement, the Company cannot seek indemnity from Grace for the Company's
payments required by the Settlement agreement. The order approving the Settlement agreement also provides that the stay of proceedings
involving the Company described above will continue through the effective date of the final plan of reorganization, after which, upon
implementation of the Settlement agreement, the Company will be released from the liabilities asserted in those proceedings and their continued
prosecution against the Company will be enjoined.

        In January 2005, Grace filed a proposed plan of reorganization (the "Grace Plan") with the Bankruptcy Court. There were a number of
objections filed. The Official Committee of Asbestos Personal Injury Claimants (the "ACC") and the Asbestos PI Future Claimants'
Representative (the "FCR") filed their proposed plan of reorganization (the "Claimants' Plan") with the Bankruptcy Court in November 2007. On
April 7, 2008, Grace issued a press release announcing that Grace, the ACC, the FCR, and the Official Committee of Equity Security Holders
(the "Equity Committee") had reached an agreement in principle to settle all present and future asbestos-related personal injury claims against
Grace (the "PI Settlement") and disclosed a term sheet outlining certain terms of the PI Settlement and for a contemplated plan of reorganization
that would incorporate the PI Settlement (as filed and amended from time to time, the "PI Settlement Plan").
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        On September 19, 2008, Grace, the ACC, the FCR, and the Equity Committee filed, as co-proponents, the PI Settlement Plan and several
exhibits and associated documents, including a disclosure statement (as filed and amended from time to time, the "PI Settlement Disclosure
Statement"), with the Bankruptcy Court. Amended versions of the PI Settlement Plan and the PI Settlement Disclosure Statement have been
filed with the Bankruptcy Court from time to time. The PI Settlement Plan, which supersedes each of the Grace Plan and the Claimants' Plan,
remains pending before the Bankruptcy Court. The committee representing general unsecured creditors and the Official Committee of Asbestos
Property Damage Claimants are not co-proponents of the PI Settlement Plan. As filed, the PI Settlement Plan would provide for the
establishment of two asbestos trusts under Section 524(g) of the United States Bankruptcy Code to which present and future asbestos-related
claims would be channeled. The PI Settlement Plan also contemplates that the terms of the Settlement agreement will be incorporated into the PI
Settlement Plan and that the Company will pay the amount contemplated by the Settlement agreement. On March 9, 2009, the Bankruptcy Court
entered an order approving the PI Settlement Disclosure Statement (the "DS Order") as containing adequate information and authorizing Grace
to solicit votes to accept or reject the PI Settlement Plan, all as more fully described in the order. The DS Order does not constitute the
Bankruptcy Court's confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan, approval of the merits of the PI Settlement Plan, or endorsement of the PI Settlement
Plan. In connection with the plan voting process in the Grace bankruptcy case, the Company has voted in favor of the PI Settlement Plan that is
currently before the Bankruptcy Court. The Company will continue to review any amendments to the PI Settlement Plan on an ongoing basis to
verify compliance with the Settlement agreement.

        On June 8, 2009, a senior manager with the voting agent appointed in the Grace bankruptcy case filed a declaration with the Bankruptcy
Court certifying the voting results with respect to the PI Settlement Plan. This declaration was amended on August 5, 2009 (as amended, the
"Voting Declaration"). According to the Voting Declaration, with respect to each class of claims designated as impaired by Grace, the PI
Settlement Plan has been approved by holders of at least two-thirds in amount and more than one-half in number (or for classes voting for
purposes of Section 524(g) of the Bankruptcy Code, at least 75% in number) of voted claims. The Voting Declaration also discusses the voting
results with respect to holders of general unsecured claims ("GUCs") against Grace, whose votes have been provisionally solicited and counted
subject to a determination by the Bankruptcy Court of whether GUCs are impaired (and, thus, entitled to vote) or, as Grace contends, unimpaired
(and, thus, not entitled to vote). The Voting Declaration provides that more than one half of voting holders of GUCs have voted to accept the PI
Settlement Plan, but that the provisional vote has not obtained the requisite two-thirds dollar amount to be deemed an accepting class in the
event that GUCs are determined to be impaired. The Bankruptcy Court has yet to determine whether GUCs are impaired under the PI Settlement
Plan. To the extent that GUCs are determined to be an impaired non-accepting class, Grace and the other plan proponents have indicated that
they will nevertheless seek confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan under the "cram down" provisions contained in section 1129(b) of the
Bankruptcy Code.

        Although the Company is optimistic that, if confirmed, the PI Settlement Plan may implement the terms of the Settlement agreement, there
can be no assurance that this will be the case. The terms of
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the PI Settlement Plan remain subject to amendment. Moreover, the PI Settlement Plan is subject to the satisfaction of a number of conditions,
including the availability of exit financing and the approval of both the Bankruptcy Court and United States District Court for the District of
Delaware (the "District Court"). A number of objections to the PI Settlement Plan have been filed and remain unresolved, and certain of these
objections concern injunctions, releases and provisions as applied to the Company and/or that are contemplated by the Settlement agreement.
The Bankruptcy Court conducted hearings to consider confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan on June 22-23, 2009, September 8-11 and
September 14-17, 2009, and October 13-14, 2009. Closing arguments with respect to the PI Settlement Plan are scheduled to take place before
the Bankruptcy Court on January 4-5, 2010.

        While several hearings to consider confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan have been held and while closing arguments are scheduled for
January 4-5, 2010, the Company does not know whether or when a final plan of reorganization will become effective. Assuming that a final plan
of reorganization (whether the PI Settlement Plan or another plan of reorganization) is confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court, approved by the
District Court, and does become effective, the Company does not know whether the final plan of reorganization will be consistent with the terms
of the Settlement agreement or if the other conditions to the Company's obligation to pay the Settlement agreement amount will be met. If these
conditions are not satisfied or not waived by the Company, the Company will not be obligated to pay the amount contemplated by the Settlement
agreement. However, if the Company does not pay the Settlement agreement amount, the Company and its affiliates will not be released from
the various asbestos-related, fraudulent transfer, successor liability, and indemnification claims made against the Company and all of these
claims would remain pending and would have to be resolved through other means, such as through agreement on alternative settlement terms or
trials. In that case, the Company could face liabilities that are significantly different from its obligations under the Settlement agreement. The
Company cannot estimate at this time what those differences or their magnitude may be. In the event these liabilities are materially larger than
the current existing obligations, they could have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position and results of
operations.

Fresenius Claims

        In January 2002, the Company filed a declaratory judgment action against Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc., its parent, Fresenius AG,
a German company, and specified affiliates in New York State court asking the court to resolve a contract dispute between the parties. The
Fresenius parties contended that the Company was obligated to indemnify them for liabilities that they might incur as a result of the 1996
Fresenius transaction mentioned above. The Fresenius parties' contention was based on their interpretation of the agreements between them and
W. R. Grace & Co.�Conn. in connection with the 1996 Fresenius transaction. In February 2002, the Fresenius parties announced that they had
accrued a charge of $172.0 million for these potential liabilities, which included pre-transaction tax liabilities of Grace and the costs of defense
of litigation arising from Grace's Chapter 11 filing. The Company believed that it was not responsible to indemnify the Fresenius parties under
the 1996 agreements and filed the action to proceed to a resolution of the Fresenius parties' claims. In April
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2002, the Fresenius parties filed a motion to dismiss the action and for entry of declaratory relief in its favor. The Company opposed the motion,
and in July 2003, the court denied the motion without prejudice in view of the November 27, 2002 agreement in principle referred to above. As
noted above, under the Settlement agreement, there will be mutual releases exchanged between the Fresenius parties and the Company releasing
any and all claims related to the 1996 Fresenius transaction.

Canadian Claims

        In November 2004, the Company's Canadian subsidiary Sealed Air (Canada) Co./Cie learned that it had been named a defendant in the case
of Thundersky v. The Attorney General of Canada, et al. (File No. CI04-01-39818), pending in the Manitoba Court of Queen's Bench. Grace and
W. R. Grace & Co.�Conn. are also named as defendants. The claim was brought as a putative class proceeding and seeks recovery for alleged
injuries suffered by any Canadian resident, other than in the course of employment, as a result of Grace's marketing, selling, processing,
manufacturing, distributing and/or delivering asbestos or asbestos-containing products in Canada prior to the Cryovac Transaction. Another
proceeding was filed in January 2005 in the Manitoba Court of The Queen's Bench naming the Company and specified subsidiaries as
defendants. The latter proceeding, Her Majesty the Queen in Right of the Province of Manitoba v. The Attorney General of Canada, et al. (File
No. CI05-01-41069), seeks the recovery of the cost of insured health services allegedly provided by the Government of Manitoba to the
members of the class of plaintiffs in the Thundersky proceeding. In October 2005, the Company learned that six additional putative class
proceedings had been brought in various provincial and federal courts in Canada seeking recovery from the Company and its subsidiaries
Cryovac, Inc. and Sealed Air (Canada) Co./Cie, as well as other defendants including W. R. Grace & Co. and W. R. Grace & Co.�Conn., for
alleged injuries suffered by any Canadian resident, other than in the course of employment (except with respect to one of these six claims), as a
result of Grace's marketing, selling, manufacturing, processing, distributing and/or delivering asbestos or asbestos-containing products in Canada
prior to the Cryovac transaction. Grace and W. R. Grace & Co.�Conn. have agreed to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Company and its
affiliates in respect of any liability and expense, including legal fees and costs, in these actions.

        In April 2001, Grace Canada, Inc. had obtained an order of the Superior Court of Justice, Commercial List, Toronto (the "Canadian
Court"), recognizing the Chapter 11 actions in the United States of America involving Grace Canada, Inc.'s U.S. parent corporation and other
affiliates of Grace Canada, Inc., and enjoining all new actions and staying all current proceedings against Grace Canada, Inc. related to asbestos
under the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act. That order has been renewed repeatedly. In November 2005, upon motion by Grace
Canada, Inc., the Canadian Court ordered an extension of the injunction and stay to actions involving asbestos against the Company and its
Canadian affiliate and the Attorney General of Canada, which had the effect of staying all of the Canadian actions referred to above. The
Canadian Court has entered an order extending the stay until March 1, 2010. A global settlement of these Canadian actions, save and except for
claims against the Canadian government, has been finalized and will be funded entirely by Grace (the "Canadian Settlement"). The Canadian
Court issued an Order on October 17, 2008 approving of the Canadian Settlement, and released its detailed reasons for that order on October 23,
2008. The Company does
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not have any positive obligations under the Canadian Settlement, but is a beneficiary of the release of claims. The release in favor of the Grace
parties (including the Company) will become operative upon the effective date of a plan of reorganization in Grace's United States Chapter 11
bankruptcy proceeding. As filed, the PI Settlement Plan contemplates that the claims released under the Canadian Settlement will be subject to
injunctions under Section 524(g) of the Bankruptcy Code. However, by its terms, the Canadian Settlement was, unless amended, to have become
null and void if a confirmation order in the Grace U.S. bankruptcy proceeding was not granted prior to October 31, 2009. As indicated, no
confirmation order has yet been entered in the Grace U.S. bankruptcy proceeding and there can be no assurance that the Canadian Settlement
will be amended to allow the settlement to continue in place. Moreover, there can be no assurance that the PI Settlement Plan (or any other plan
of reorganization) will be confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court, approved by the District Court, or will become effective. Assuming that a final
plan of reorganization (whether the PI Settlement Plan or another plan of reorganization) is confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court, approved by the
District Court, and does become effective, if the final plan of reorganization does not include comparable provisions or if the Canadian courts
refuse to enforce the final plan of reorganization in the Canadian courts, and if in addition Grace is unwilling or unable to defend and indemnify
the Company and its subsidiaries in these cases, then the Company could be required to pay substantial damages, which the Company cannot
estimate at this time and which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Additional Matters Related to the Cryovac Transaction

        In view of Grace's Chapter 11 filing, the Company may receive additional claims asserting that the Company is liable for obligations that
Grace had agreed to retain in the Cryovac transaction and for which the Company may be contingently liable. To date, the Company is unaware
of any material claims having been asserted or threatened against the Company.

        Final determinations and accountings under the Cryovac transaction agreements with respect to matters pertaining to the transaction had not
been completed at the time of Grace's Chapter 11 filing in 2001. The Company has filed claims in the bankruptcy proceeding that reflect the
costs and liabilities that it has incurred or may incur that Grace and its affiliates agreed to retain or that are subject to indemnification by Grace
and its affiliates under the Cryovac transaction agreements, other than payments to be made under the Settlement agreement. Grace has alleged
that the Company is responsible for specified amounts under the Cryovac transaction agreements. Subject to the terms of the Settlement
agreement, amounts for which the Company may be liable to Grace may be used to offset the liabilities of Grace and its affiliates to the
Company. The Company intends to seek indemnification by Grace and its affiliates for defense costs related to asbestos and fraudulent transfer
litigation and the Fresenius claims, and approximately $8.1 million paid by the Company on account of its guaranty of debt issued by W. R.
Grace & Co.�Conn. Except to the extent of any potential setoff or similar claim, the Company expects that its claims will be as an unsecured
creditor of Grace. Since portions of the Company's claims against Grace and its affiliates are contingent or unliquidated, the Company cannot
determine the amount of the Company's claims, the extent to which these claims may
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be reduced by setoff, how much of the claims may be allowed, or the amount of the Company's recovery on these claims, if any, in the
bankruptcy proceeding.

MPERS Lawsuit

        On September 15, 2003, the case of Senn v. Hickey, et al. (Case No. 03-CV-4372) was filed in the U.S. District Court for the District of
New Jersey (Newark). This lawsuit seeks class action status on behalf of all persons who purchased or otherwise acquired securities of the
Company during the period from March 27, 2000 through July 30, 2002. The lawsuit named the Company and five current and former officers
and directors of the Company as defendants. The Company is required to provide indemnification to the other defendants, and accordingly the
Company's counsel is also defending them. On June 29, 2004, the court granted plaintiff Miles Senn's motion for appointment as lead plaintiff
and for approval of his choice of lead counsel. The plaintiff's amended complaint makes a number of allegations against the defendants. The
principal allegations are that during the above period the defendants materially misled the investing public, artificially inflated the price of the
Company's common stock by publicly issuing false and misleading statements and violated U.S. GAAP by failing to properly account and
accrue for the Company's contingent liability for asbestos claims arising from past operations of Grace. The plaintiff seeks unspecified
compensatory damages and other relief. The Company has vigorously defended the lawsuit, since the Company believes that it properly
disclosed its contingent liability for Grace's asbestos claims and properly accounted for its contingent liability for such claims under U.S. GAAP.

        On March 14, 2005, the Company and the individual defendants filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint in the Senn v. Hickey, et
al. case for failure to state a claim. On December 19, 2005, the Court granted in part and denied in part defendants' motion to dismiss. The Court
determined that the complaint failed adequately to allege scienter as to the four individual defendants other than T.J. Dermot Dunphy, and
therefore dismissed the lawsuit with respect to these four individual defendants, but adequately alleged scienter as to Mr. Dunphy and the
Company. Mr. Dunphy is a current director of the Company and was formerly Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. On December 28, 2005, the defendants requested that the Court reconsider the portion of the December 19, 2005 order denying
defendants' motion to dismiss with regard to the Company's arguments other than scienter, or, in the alternative, that the Court certify the matter
for interlocutory appeal. On February 13, 2006, the defendants filed an answer to the amended complaint. On April 7, 2006, the Court heard oral
argument on defendants' reconsideration motion, and on July 10, 2006, the Court denied the motion on the ground that issues of fact prevent the
Court from granting a motion to dismiss based on the Company's arguments other than scienter. On October 3, 2006, plaintiff filed a motion to
certify a class of all persons who purchased or otherwise acquired the securities of the Company during the period from March 27, 2000 through
July 30, 2002. On November 22, 2006, plaintiff filed an amended motion for class certification, seeking to withdraw as a class representative
and to substitute a new class representative, the Louisiana Municipal Police Employees Retirement System ("MPERS"). On March 26, 2007, the
Court entered an order permitting Miles Senn to withdraw as lead plaintiff and permitting MPERS to be substituted as lead plaintiff.
Consequently, the case is now properly referred to as MPERS v. Sealed Air Corporation, et al. On
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March 29, 2007, MPERS, as lead plaintiff, filed a motion to certify a class of all persons or entities that purchased Sealed Air Corporation
securities during the period from March 27, 2000 through July 30, 2002, both dates inclusive, and were damaged thereby. On July 25, 2007, the
Company and Mr. Dunphy filed their memorandum of law in opposition to MPERS's motion for class certification. On July 25, 2007, the
Company and Mr. Dunphy also filed a motion for reconsideration or for judgment on the pleadings, arguing that the Supreme Court's recent
decisions in Tellabs, Inc. v. Makor Issues & Rights, Ltd., and Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Twombly require dismissal of MPERS's claims. In an
Opinion and Order dated March 12, 2008, the Court granted plaintiff's motion for class certification. Subsequently, in an Opinion and Order
dated March 14, 2008, the Court denied defendants' motion for reconsideration of their motion to dismiss the complaint premised on the
Supreme Court's decisions in Tellabs and Twombly. On March 27, 2008, the Company and Mr. Dunphy filed a petition for leave to appeal the
district court's class certification ruling to the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit. On May 14, 2008, the Third Circuit denied
the petition.

        On April 27, 2009 the Company reached an agreement in principle with the plaintiff to settle the MPERS v. Sealed Air Corporation, et al.
case, subject to documentation and Court approval. The agreement provides for payment of $20.0 million, which will be substantially funded by
the Company's primary and excess insurance carriers. On May 27, 2009, the Court entered an Order formally closing the action without costs
and without prejudice to the right, upon good cause shown within sixty days, to reopen the matter if the settlement were not consummated. On
August 25, 2009, the Court entered an Order granting preliminary approval to the settlement and setting a hearing for final approval of the
settlement on December 2, 2009.

Other Litigation and Claims

        The Company and its subsidiary Sealed Air Corporation (US) are named as defendants in the case of Albert L. Gray, Administrator, et al. v.
Jeffrey Derderian, et al. (Case No. 04-312L) in the U.S. District Court for the District of Rhode Island. This lawsuit seeks monetary damages
arising out of a fire that occurred at the Station nightclub in West Warwick, Rhode Island on February 23, 2003. The Company's subsidiary is
alleged to have designed, manufactured, distributed and/or sold polyethylene foam material that was purportedly installed as soundproofing at
the Station nightclub. The Third Amended Master Complaint in this lawsuit was subsequently adopted by the plaintiffs in the case of Estate of
Jude B. Henault, et al. v. American Foam Corporation, et al. (Case No. 03-483L) as well as twelve related lawsuits all pending in the United
States District Court for the District of Rhode Island. The Company and its insurance carriers have reached a settlement in principle of these
lawsuits with representative counsel for the plaintiffs. Full funding of the settlement in the amount of $25.0 million will be made by the
Company's primary and first excess insurance carrier. As a result of the settlement in principle, in the second quarter of 2008, the Company
recorded a liability in the amount of $25.0 million, which is included in other current liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet.
The Company also recorded a corresponding current asset in the second quarter of 2008 for $24.5 million for the portion of the claim that is
covered by the Company's primary and first excess insurance carriers. This amount is included in other current assets on the condensed
consolidated balance sheet. The Company has also recorded a pre-tax charge in the second quarter of 2008 of $0.5 million for the amount of the
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deductible payable by the Company, which was included in other (expense) income on the condensed consolidated statement of operations. This
settlement in principle remains subject to Court approval and satisfaction of other conditions detailed in notices of settlement filed with the
Court.

        During the second quarter of 2009, one of the Company's foreign subsidiaries received notice of a product liability claim from a large food
industry customer. The claim was in connection with a material that was supplied by the Company's foreign subsidiary and was unique to that
Food Solutions' customer. The customer claimed damage to certain food products. In July 2009, the Company's foreign subsidiary agreed to
make a payment which, as of September 30, 2009, was equivalent to $8.4 million, in full and final settlement of the customer's claim. While the
Company's insurers are still investigating this matter, the Company's insurers have paid the Company approximately $5.3 million on account of
the claims, and accordingly, in the third quarter of 2009, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of $3.1 million in cost of sales on the
Company's condensed consolidated statement of operations for the remaining portion of the claim.

 (15) Stockholders' Equity

Quarterly Cash Dividends

        During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the Company declared and paid quarterly cash dividends of $0.12 per common share on
March 20, 2009 to stockholders of record at the close of business on March 6, 2009, on June 19, 2009 to stockholders of record on June 5, 2009
and on September 18, 2009 to stockholders of record on September 4, 2009. The Company used available cash totaling $57.1 million to pay
these quarterly cash dividends.

        On October 22, 2009, the Company's Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.12 per common share. This dividend is
payable on December 18, 2009 to stockholders of record at the close of business on December 4, 2009. The estimated amount of this dividend
payment is $19.1 million based on approximately 159.0 million shares of the Company's common stock issued and outstanding as of October 31,
2009.
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Contingent Stock Plan

PSU Awards

        As part of the long term incentive program adopted in the first quarter of 2008, during the first 90 days of each year starting in 2008, the
Company's Organization and Compensation Committee (Compensation Committee) approves performance share unit (PSU) awards for the
executive officers and other selected key executives, which includes for each officer or executive a target number of shares and performance
goals and measures that will determine the amount of the target award that is earned following the end of the performance period. In connection
with the start of the program in 2008, the Compensation Committee approved awards with a two-year performance period as well as awards with
a three-year performance period. Officers and executives who terminate employment during the performance period will forfeit any unearned
awards, except for terminations due to death, disability or retirement. In the case of death, disability or retirement the officer or executive will
receive a pro rata share of the amount of the award that is earned following the end of the performance period based on the achievement of the
performance goals during the performance period, where the pro rata share is based on the portion of the performance period that has elapsed
prior to termination of employment.

        The two-year and three-year PSU awards made in the first quarter of 2008 were primarily based on goals that were established using the
2008 operating income projection available at that time. In early 2009, the Compensation Committee determined that the goals were unlikely to
be met given that the level of 2008 operating income attained was significantly below the target for 2008, the first year of both cycles. Therefore,
the executive officers and other recipients of these awards would not be eligible to earn long term incentive compensation until the end of the
next three-year cycle in 2011. Thus the Compensation Committee determined that the two-year and three-year PSU awards made in 2008 no
longer provided incentives for performance or retention.

        As a result, during the first quarter of 2009, the Compensation Committee offered executive officers and other selected key executives
two-year PSU awards on the condition that they waive and release their rights under the 2008 PSU awards. In addition, the Compensation
Committee made the customary three-year PSU awards to the executive officers and other selected key executives. Both the two-year awards
and the three-year awards were formulated in light of economic conditions and uncertainties for 2009 and beyond.

        The total target number of PSUs is 701,962 units for each of the two-year PSU awards and the three-year PSU awards made in 2009. The
total number of PSUs to be issued for each of the two-year awards and the three-year awards can range from zero to 200% of the target number
of PSUs depending on the level of achievement of the operating performance goals and measures and the discretion of the Compensation
Committee.

        The Company recognized $3.5 million of compensation expense in the three months ended September 30, 2009 and $8.6 million of
compensation expense in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 related to the 2009 two-year and three-year PSU awards. This expense was
calculated based on management's estimate as of September 30, 2009 of the level of achievement of the operating
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performance goals and measures as set forth in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The amount is
based on the share price of the Company's common stock at the end of each reporting period. Each quarter, the amount will be adjusted up or
down to reflect the effects of stock price changes and these adjustments will be included in compensation expense. This compensation expense is
included in marketing, administrative and development expenses on the condensed consolidated statement of operations with a credit to
additional paid-in-capital within stockholders' equity. As of September 30, 2009, based on the price of the Company's common stock of $19.63
per share, the estimated amount of compensation expense to be recognized over the remaining vesting periods of the PSU awards was
approximately $18.9 million. The estimated amount of future compensation expense will fluctuate based on: (1) the level of achievement of the
two-year and three-year targets considered probable in future quarters, which impacts the number of PSUs that could be issued; and (2) the
future price of the Company's common stock.
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 (16) Net Earnings Per Common Share

        The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the basic and diluted net earnings per common share computations for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Basic Net Earnings Per Common Share:
Numerator
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 60.6 $ 9.2 $ 179.2 $ 132.6
Distributed and allocated undistributed net earnings to non-vested
restricted stockholders (0.5) (0.1) (1.4) (1.1)

Distributed and allocated undistributed net earnings to
common stockholders 60.1 9.1 177.8 131.5
Distributed net earnings�dividends paid to common stockholders (18.9) (18.8) (56.6) (56.9)

Allocation of undistributed net earnings (loss) to common
stockholders $ 41.2 $ (9.7) $ 121.2 $ 74.6

Denominator
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding�basic 157.4 156.4 157.1 158.0

Basic net earnings per common share:
Distributed net earnings to common stockholders $ 0.12 $ 0.12 $ 0.36 $ 0.36
Allocated undistributed net earnings (loss) to common
stockholders 0.26 (0.06) 0.77 0.47

Basic net earnings per common share: $ 0.38 $ 0.06 $ 1.13 $ 0.83

Diluted Net Earnings Per Common Share:
Numerator
Distributed and allocated undistributed net earnings to common
stockholders $ 60.1 $ 9.1 $ 177.8 $ 131.5
Add: Allocated undistributed net earnings to non-vested
restricted stockholders 0.4 � 1.0 0.7
Interest on 3% Convertible Senior Notes, net of taxes(1) 0.4 � 4.4 5.9

Less: Undistributed net earnings reallocated to non-vested
restricted stockholders (0.3) � (0.9) (0.6)

Net earnings available to common stockholders�diluted $ 60.6 $ 9.1 $ 182.3 $ 137.5

Denominator
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding�basic 157.4 156.4 157.1 158.0
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Effect of assumed issuance of Settlement agreement shares 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0
Effect of non-vested restricted stock units 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Effect of conversion of 3% Convertible Senior Notes(1) 2.7 � 9.6 12.8

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding�diluted 178.3 174.6 184.9 189.0

Diluted net earnings per common share $ 0.34 $ 0.05 $ 0.99 $ 0.73

(1)
On July 20, 2009, the Company redeemed all of its 3% Convertible Senior Notes. As a result, the Company expects its weighted
average number of common shares outstanding�diluted to be approximately 176 million for the three months ended December 31, 2009
and 183 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. In calculating diluted net earnings per common share for the three months
ended September 30, 2008, net earnings available to common stockholders�diluted and the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding�diluted excluded the effect of conversion of the Company's 3% Convertible Senior Notes as the effect was antidilutive.
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SEALED AIR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in tables are in millions, except per share data)

(16) Net Earnings Per Common Share (Continued)

        On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted a new accounting standard that requires non-vested share-based payment awards that contain
non-forfeitable rights to dividends to be treated as participating securities, and therefore they were included in computing earnings per common
share using the two-class method. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that calculates basic and diluted net earnings per
common share for each class of common stock separately based on dividends declared and participation rights in undistributed earnings. The
Company's non-vested restricted stock issued under its 2005 Contingent Stock Plan are considered participating securities since these securities
have non-forfeitable rights to dividends when the Company declares a dividend during the contractual period of the share-based payment award.

        When calculating diluted net earnings per common share, the more dilutive effect of applying either of the following is presented: (a) the
two-class method assuming that the participating security is not exercised or converted, or, (b) the treasury stock method for the participating
security. The Company's diluted net earnings per common share above were calculated using the two-class method since such method was more
dilutive.

        The calculations of basic and diluted net earnings per common share for 2008 have been adjusted to reflect this change and this change did
not have a material impact.

Diluted Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding

        The Company's diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding provides for the following items if their inclusion is
dilutive: (1) the effect of the assumed issuance of 18 million shares of common stock reserved for the Company's Settlement agreement, (2) the
effect of non-vested restricted stock units using the treasury stock method, and (3) the effect of conversion of the Company's 3% Convertible
Senior Notes due June 2033. The Company's PSU awards discussed in Note 15, "Stockholders' Equity," and its Stock Leverage Opportunity
awards discussed in Note 17, "Shareholders' Equity," in the Company's 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K, have been excluded from the diluted
weighted average number of common shares outstanding in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 as they are
contingently issuable shares that had not met the performance conditions as of these periods.

 (17) Other Expense, Net

        The following table provides details of the Company's other expense, net:

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest and dividend income $ 2.0 $ 3.4 $ 6.0 $ 11.3
Net foreign exchange transaction losses (3.2) (1.5) (6.2) (7.5)
Settlement agreement and related costs (0.4) (0.8) (1.2) (1.4)
Noncontrolling interests 0.5 0.5 1.3 0.7
Other, net (1.3) (2.9) (4.1) (6.3)

Other expense, net $ (2.4) $ (1.3) $ (4.2) $ (3.2)
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 Item 2.    Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

        The information in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read together
with the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes set forth in Item 1 of Part I of this quarterly report on
Form 10-Q, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations set forth in Item 7 of Part II of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, and the Company's consolidated financial statements and
related notes set forth in Item 8 of Part II of that Form 10-K. See Part II, Item 1A, "Risk Factors" and "Cautionary Notice Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements," below, for a description of risks that the Company faces and important factors that the Company believes could
cause actual results to differ materially from those in the Company's forward-looking statements. All amounts and percentages are approximate
due to rounding and all dollars are in millions.

Recent Events

Financing Transactions

        On July 19, 2009, the Company redeemed all of its $431.3 million of 3% Convertible Senior Notes due 2033. The Company used net
proceeds from its issuance of $400.0 million 7.875% Senior Notes on June 18, 2009 and available cash to redeem the 3% Convertible Senior
Notes.

        See Note 10, "Debt and Credit Facilities," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financials for further information.

Quarterly Cash Dividends

        During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the Company declared and paid quarterly cash dividends of $0.12 per common share in
each quarter. The Company used available cash totaling $57.1 million to pay these quarterly cash dividends.

        On October 22, 2009, the Company's Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.12 per common share. This dividend is
payable on December 18, 2009 to stockholders of record at the close of business on December 4, 2009. The estimated amount of this dividend
payment is $19.1 million based on approximately 159.0 million shares of the Company's common stock issued and outstanding as of October 31,
2009.
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Highlights of Financial Performance

        Highlights of the Company's financial performance in the third quarter and first nine months of 2009 compared with the same period of
2008 were:

Third Quarter of First Nine Months of%
Change

%
Change2009 2008 2009 2008

Net sales:
U.S. $ 497.9 $ 533.2 (7)% $ 1,464.8 $ 1,632.3 (10)%
As a % of total net
sales 46.1% 43.7% 47.3% 44.4%

International 582.0 685.8 (15) 1,631.6 2,042.9 (20)
As a % of total net
sales 53.9% 56.3% 52.7% 55.6%

Total net sales $ 1,079.9 $ 1,219.0 (11) $ 3,096.4 $ 3,675.2 (16)

Gross profit $ 311.1 $ 293.7 6 $ 884.9 $ 929.0 (5)
As a % of total net
sales 28.8% 24.1% 28.6% 25.3%

Marketing,
administrative and
development expenses 180.0 193.2 (7) 515.5 582.9 (12)
As a % of total net
sales 16.7% 15.8% 16.6% 15.9%

Restructuring and other
charges 0.9 61.3 (99) 1.2 63.8 (98)

Operating profit $ 130.2 $ 39.2 # $ 368.2 $ 282.3 30

As a % of total net
sales 12.1% 3.2% 11.9% 7.7%

Net earnings available to
common stockholders $ 60.6 $ 9.2 # $ 179.2 $ 132.6 35%

Net earnings per
common share:
Basic $ 0.38 $ 0.06 $ 1.13 $ 0.83

Diluted $ 0.34 $ 0.05 $ 0.99 $ 0.73

# Denotes a variance greater than 100%

        The Company's consolidated unit volume results, detailed below, for both the third quarter and the first nine months of 2009 were lower
than comparable periods primarily reflecting weak global economic conditions. The Company's Protective Packaging segment and its Specialty
Materials business, which combined represent approximately 32% of the Company's consolidated net sales in the period, were the most
impacted by the recessionary conditions. These lower unit volumes were judged by management to be consistent with the Company's peers in
each segment and with economic indicators of customer demand in each segment and geographic region. The Company continues to believe that
the unit volume declines experienced in these businesses do not represent a shift in the Company's competitiveness or in the quality of its
products and solutions.

        Comparing the third quarter of 2009 with the second quarter of 2009, or sequentially, the Protective Packaging segment and Specialty
Materials business experienced a combined 8% reported increase in net sales. Excluding a 3% impact of foreign currency translation, these
businesses recorded a 5% increase in net sales. This increase reflected a combination of a seasonal lift, modest customer inventory restocking
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and, to a lesser extent, new product placements. Sequentially, the Company's Food Packaging and Food Solutions segments experienced a
combined 4% reported increase in net sales; however, excluding a 4% impact of foreign currency translation, net sales of these segments were
flat, which reflected regional animal production rates and lower meat consumption primarily in some European countries.
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        The Company's product price/mix results declined sequentially, and in the third quarter of 2009 compared with the same period of 2008,
which reflected selected selling price reductions in some areas of the business attributable to the impact of lower input costs, the timing of price
increases in 2008 and, to a lesser extent, competitive situations. These declines were partially offset by the benefits of the Company's pricing
initiatives in 2008 primarily realized in the first half of 2009.

        See the discussion below for further details about the changes in net sales by the Company's segment reporting structure and by geographic
region and operating profit by the Company's segment reporting structure and further details of the material factors that contributed to the
changes.

Net Sales by the Company's Segment Reporting Structure

        The following table presents the Company's net sales by the Company's segment reporting structure:

Third Quarter of First Nine Months of%
Change

%
Change2009 2008 2009 2008

Net sales:
Food Packaging $ 463.4 $ 479.7 (3)% $ 1,336.1 $ 1,466.9 (9)%
As a % of total net
sales 42.9% 39.4% 43.1% 39.9%

Food Solutions 229.6 255.9 (10) 655.0 751.0 (13)
As a % of total net
sales 21.3% 21.0% 21.2% 20.4%

Protective Packaging 306.1 377.2 (19) 868.0 1,141.7 (24)
As a % of total net
sales 28.3% 30.9% 28.0% 31.1%

Other 80.8 106.2 (24) 237.3 315.6 (25)
As a % of total net
sales 7.5% 8.7% 7.7% 8.6%

Total $ 1,079.9 $ 1,219.0 (11)% $ 3,096.4 $ 3,675.2 (16)%

        The following tables present the components of change in net sales for the third quarter of 2009 and first nine months of 2009 as compared
with the same periods of 2008. The Company also presents the change in net sales excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, a
non-U.S. GAAP measure, which the Company defines as "constant dollar." The Company believes using constant dollar comparisons aids in the
comparability with other periods.

Third Quarter of 2009
Food

Packaging
Food

Solutions
Protective
Packaging Other

Total
Company

Volume�Units $ 25.0 5.2% $ (3.9) (1.5)% $ (44.5) (11.8)% $ (26.3) (24.8)% $ (49.7) (4.1)%
Volume�Acquired
businesses, net of
dispositions � � � � � � (0.2) (0.1) (0.2) �
Product price/mix (5.4) (1.1) (5.4) (2.1) (12.4) (3.3) 5.6 5.1 (17.6) (1.4)
Foreign currency
translation (35.9) (7.5) (17.0) (6.7) (14.2) (3.7) (4.5) (4.2) (71.6) (5.9)

Total Change (U.S.
GAAP) $ (16.3) (3.4)% $ (26.3) (10.3)% $ (71.1) (18.8)% $ (25.4) (24.0)% $ (139.1) (11.4)%

Add: Foreign currency
translation $ 35.9 7.5% $ 17.0 6.7% $ 14.2 3.7% $ 4.5 4.2% $ 71.6 5.9%

Total constant dollar
change (Non-U.S.
GAAP) $ 19.6 4.1% $ (9.3) (3.6)% $ (56.9) (15.1)% $ (20.9) (19.8)% $ (67.5) (5.5)%
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First Nine Months of 2009
Food

Packaging
Food

Solutions
Protective
Packaging Other

Total
Company

Volume�Units $ (40.0) (2.7)% $ (31.5) (4.2)% $ (199.4) (17.5)% $ (75.2) (23.8)% $ (346.1) (9.4)%
Volume�Acquired
businesses, net of
dispositions � � � � 2.2 0.2 � � 2.2 0.1
Product price/mix 50.4 3.4 6.9 0.9 (16.4) (1.4) 14.8 4.6 55.7 1.5
Foreign currency
translation (141.2) (9.6) (71.4) (9.5) (60.1) (5.3) (17.9) (5.7) (290.6) (7.9)

Total Change (U.S.
GAAP) $ (130.8) (8.9)% $ (96.0) (12.8)% $ (273.7) (24.0)% $ (78.3) (24.9)% $ (578.8) (15.7)%

Add: Foreign currency
translation $ 141.2 9.6% $ 71.4 9.5% $ 60.1 5.3% $ 17.9 5.7% $ 290.6 7.9%

Total constant dollar
change (Non-U.S.
GAAP) $ 10.4 0.7% $ (24.6) (3.3)% $ (213.6) (18.7)% $ (60.4) (19.2)% $ (288.2) (7.8)%

        The strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies contributed to the unfavorable foreign currency translation impact in both
the third quarter and first nine months of 2009 as compared with the same periods in 2008.

        The following net sales discussions below are on a constant dollar basis.

Food Packaging Segment Net Sales

Third Quarter 2009 compared with 2008

        The $19.6 million, or 4%, increase in net sales in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to:

�
an increase in unit volume in the United States of $28.2 million, or 14%;

        partially offset by:

�
the unfavorable impact of product price/mix in the United States of $15.1 million, or 8%.

        The increase in unit volume in the United States was primarily due to a favorable comparison to the third quarter of 2008 as customers
purchased products in the second quarter of 2008 that would have normally been purchased in the third quarter of 2008. These purchases were
made in advance of the Company's enterprise software launch in the United States on July 1, 2008. Also contributing to this increase, but to a
lesser extent, was higher local meat production in this region during the third quarter of 2009.

        The unfavorable impact of product price/mix in the United States was primarily due to selected selling price reductions on new and
renewed contracts in the third quarter of 2009 for some Food Packaging products, which reflected lower input costs (as discussed in Cost of
Sales below).

First Nine Months of 2009 compared with 2008

        The $10.4 million, or 1%, increase in net sales in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to:

�
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the favorable impacts of product price/mix in Europe of $11.3 million, or 4%, and in the United States of $7.9 million, or
1%;

        partially offset by:

�
decreases in unit volume in the United States of $12.5 million, or 2%, and in Europe of $16.8 million, or 5%.

        The favorable impacts of product price/mix in Europe and the United States were primarily attributable to the timing of price increases in
2008.
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        The decreases in unit volume in the United States and Europe were primarily due to declines in local meat production during the first nine
months of 2009 and, to a lesser extent, lower equipment sales, both of which reflected the continuing economic weakness in these regions.

Food Solutions Segment Net Sales

Third Quarter 2009 compared with 2008

        The $9.3 million, or 4%, decrease in net sales in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to a decline in unit volume in Europe of
$11.0 million, or 10%, primarily due to the unfavorable impact of reduced meat consumption in some countries reflecting the continuing
economic weakness in this region, which in turn resulted in lower sales of the Company's case-ready packaging products.

        Also contributing to this decrease was an unfavorable impact of product price/mix in the United States of $4.0 million, or 4%, which was
primarily due to selling price adjustments implemented in the third quarter of 2009 primarily for outsourced trays that have formula pricing
terms. These price adjustments were implemented in response to lower input costs (as discussed in Cost of Sales below).

First Nine Months of 2009 compared with 2008

        The $24.6 million, or 3%, decrease in net sales in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to a decline in unit volume in Europe of
$33.0 million, or 11%, partially offset by the favorable impact of product price/mix in this region of $9.4 million, or 3%. The decline in unit
volume was primarily due to the unfavorable impact of reduced consumption of certain meats in some countries reflecting the continuing
economic weakness in this region, which in turn resulted in lower sales of the Company's case-ready packaging products. The favorable impact
of product price/mix was primarily attributed to the timing of price increases in 2008.

Protective Packaging Segment Net Sales

Third Quarter 2009 compared with 2008

        The $56.9 million, or 15%, decrease in net sales in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to declines in unit volumes in North
America of $25.5 million, or 12%, and in Europe of $16.2 million, or 15%, which were principally attributable to continuing economic
weakness in these regions, which were consistent with external manufacturing output and export and shipping trends.

First Nine Months of 2009 compared with 2008

        The $213.6 million, or 19%, decrease in net sales in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to declines in unit volumes in North
America of $108.5 million, or 17%, and in Europe of $64.8 million, or 19%, which were principally attributable to the items mentioned above.

Other Net Sales

Third Quarter 2009 compared with 2008

        The $20.9 million, or 20%, decrease in net sales in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to declines in unit volumes in North
America of $12.3 million, or 31%, and in Europe of $10.3 million, or 22%. The declines in unit volumes in North America and in Europe were
primarily attributed to lower unit volumes for some of the Company's Specialty Materials products, which were principally the result of
continuing economic weakness in these regions consistent with external manufacturing output and export and shipping trends.
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First Nine Months of 2009 compared with 2008

        The $60.4 million, or 19%, decrease in net sales in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to declines in unit volumes in North
America of $35.0 million, or 30%, and in Europe of $29.7 million, or 20%. The declines in unit volumes in North America and in Europe were
primarily due to lower unit volumes in some of the Company's Specialty Materials products, which were principally attributable to the factors
mentioned above.

Net Sales by Geographic Region

        The following table shows net sales by geographic region:

Third Quarter of First Nine Months of%
Change

%
Change2009 2008 2009 2008

Net sales:
U.S. $ 497.9 $ 533.2 (7)% $ 1,464.8 $ 1,632.3 (10)%
As a % of total net
sales 46.1% 43.7% 47.3% 44.4%

International 582.0 685.8 (15) 1,631.6 2,042.9 (20)
As a % of total net
sales 53.9% 56.3% 52.7% 55.6%

Total net sales $ 1,079.9 $ 1,219.0 (11) $ 3,096.4 $ 3,675.2 (16)

        By geographic region, the components of the decrease in net sales for the third quarter of 2009 compared with the same period of 2008
were as follows:

Third Quarter of 2009 U.S. International Total Company
Volume�Units $ (6.7) (1.3)% $ (43.0) (6.3)% $ (49.7) (4.1)%
Volume�Acquired
businesses, net of
dispositions � � (0.2) � (0.2) �
Product price/mix (28.6) (5.4) 11.0 1.6 (17.6) (1.4)
Foreign currency
translation � � (71.6) (10.4) (71.6) (5.9)

Total $ (35.3) (6.7)% $ (103.8) (15.1)% $ (139.1) (11.4)%

        The components of the decrease in net sales for the first nine months of 2009 compared with the same period of 2008 were as follows:

First Nine Months of 2009 U.S. International Total Company
Volume�Units $ (158.8) (9.7)% $ (187.3) (9.2)% $ (346.1) (9.4)%
Volume�Acquired
businesses, net of
dispositions 2.2 0.1 � � 2.2 0.1
Product price/mix (10.9) (0.7) 66.6 3.3 55.7 1.5
Foreign currency
translation � � (290.6) (14.2) (290.6) (7.9)

Total $ (167.5) (10.3)% $ (411.3) (20.1)% $ (578.8) (15.7)%

Cost of Sales

        The following table shows the Company's cost of sales:

Third Quarter of First Nine Months of
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%
Change

%
Change2009 2008 2009 2008

Cost of sales $ 768.8 $ 925.3 (17) $ 2,211.5 $ 2,746.2 (19)
As a % of net sales 71.2% 75.9% 71.4% 74.7%
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Third Quarter of 2009 compared with 2008

        Excluding a favorable impact of foreign currency translation of $52.9 million, cost of sales would have decreased $103.6 million in 2009
compared with 2008. This decline was primarily due to the impact of lower unit volumes mentioned above as well as lower input costs,
including lower average petrochemical-based raw material costs of approximately $60.0 million and lower freight and energy costs of
approximately $14.0 million.

First Nine Months of 2009 compared with 2008

        Excluding a favorable impact of foreign currency translation of $221.7 million, cost of sales would have decreased $313.0 million in 2009
compared with 2008. This decline was primarily due to the impact of lower unit volumes mentioned above as well as lower input costs,
including lower average petrochemical-based raw material costs of approximately $170.0 million and lower freight and energy costs of
approximately $30.0 million.

        Also contributing to the decrease in cost of sales in both periods of 2009 compared with 2008 were realized total incremental benefits
estimated to be approximately $10.0 million in the third quarter of 2009 and $30.0 million in the first nine months of 2009 from the Company's
global manufacturing strategy and the 2008 cost reduction and productivity program.

Marketing, Administrative and Development Expenses

        The following table shows the Company's marketing, administrative and development expenses:

Third
Quarter of

First Nine
Months of%

Change
%

Change2009 2008 2009 2008
Marketing,
administrative and
development expenses $ 180.0 $ 193.2 (7) $ 515.5 $ 582.9 (12)
As a % of net sales 16.7% 15.8% 16.6% 15.9%

Third Quarter of 2009 compared with 2008

        Excluding a favorable impact of foreign currency translation of $9.4 million, these expenses would have decreased $3.8 million, which was
primarily due to:

�
lower employee salary and benefits costs of approximately $6.0 million in 2009 primarily related to the reduction of
headcount from the Company's 2008 cost reduction and productivity program; and

�
reduced expenses due to the favorable impact of expense control initiatives in 2009, including a decrease in travel and
entertainment expenses of approximately $2.6 million.

        These items were partially offset by higher accruals for management incentive compensation expenses of approximately $5.0 million in
2009 as a result of management's progress towards meeting its 2009 financial performance goals. This compares with lower accruals in 2008 as
a result of the Company not being on track to meet its 2008 financial performance goals.

First Nine Months of 2009 compared with 2008

        Excluding a favorable impact of foreign currency translation of $37.4 million, these expenses would have decreased $30.0 million, which
was primarily due to:

�
lower employee salary and benefits costs of approximately $20.0 million in 2009 primarily related to the reduction of
headcount from the Company's 2008 cost reduction and productivity program; and
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�
reduced expenses due to the favorable impact of expense control initiatives in 2009, including a decrease in travel and
entertainment expenses of approximately $13.2 million.

        These items were partially offset by higher accruals for management incentive compensation expenses of approximately $11.0 million in
2009 as a result of management's progress towards meeting its 2009 financial performance goals. This compares with lower accruals in 2008 as
a result of the Company not being on track to meet its 2008 financial performance goals.

Cost Reduction and Productivity Program and Global Manufacturing Strategy

Cost Reduction and Productivity Program

        In the third quarter of 2008, the Company implemented a cost reduction and productivity program. The components of the restructuring
accrual, which was primarily for termination benefits, through September 30, 2009 and the accrual balance remaining at September 30, 2009
related to this program are included in the table below. The Company expects to incur additional modest costs associated with this program in
the remainder of 2009.

Restructuring accrual at December 31, 2008 $ 43.7
Cash payments made during 2009 (31.9)
Additional accrual for termination benefits 0.5
Effect of changes in foreign currency rates (0.4)

Restructuring accrual at September 30, 2009 $ 11.9

        The Company expects to pay $11.7 million of the accrual balance remaining at September 30, 2009 within the next 12 months. This amount
is included in other current liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2009. The remaining accrual of $0.2 million
is expected to be paid by the end of 2010 and is included in other liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2009.

        See "Cost of Sales" and "Marketing, Administrative and Development Expenses" above, for a discussion of the benefits realized from this
program in 2009.

Global Manufacturing Strategy

        The Company's global manufacturing strategy, when fully implemented, will expand production in regions where demand for the
Company's products and services has been growing significantly. At the same time, the Company is optimizing certain manufacturing platforms
in North America and Europe into centers of excellence. The goals of this multi-year program are to expand capacity in growing markets, further
improve the Company's operating efficiencies, and implement new technologies more effectively. By taking advantage of new technologies and
streamlining production on a global scale, the Company expects to continue to enhance its profitable growth and its global leadership position
and produce meaningful savings.

        The Company announced the first phase of this multi-year global manufacturing strategy in July 2006. At the end of 2008, the construction
phase of the program was substantially complete. The Company has realized approximately $25.0 million of benefits from this program for the
full year 2008, and these benefits are expected to increase to annual benefits of $45.0 million in 2009 and to $55.0 million in 2010 and
thereafter. The Company anticipates full year 2009 pre-tax charges related to this program to be approximately $20.0 million. The actual timing
of future capital expenditures and related costs is subject to change due to a variety of factors that may cause a portion of the spending and
benefits to occur in future periods.
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        The capital expenditures, associated costs and related restructuring charges and the total amounts incurred since inception of this multi-year
strategy are included in the table below.

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
Cumulative
Through

September 30,
20092009 2008 2009 2008

Capital expenditures $ 5.2 $ 16.3 $ 16.6 $ 43.8 $ 149.3
Associated costs(1) 2.3 2.2 7.6 5.9 30.2
Restructuring and other charges(2) 0.3 1.4 0.8 3.9 32.6

(1)
The associated costs principally include facility start-up costs, which are primarily included in cost of sales on the condensed
consolidated statements of operations. These charges by the Company's reporting structure were as follows:

Three Months
Ended

September 30,

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Food Packaging $ 1.9 $ 1.4 $ 6.2 $ 2.8
Food Solutions 0.3 0.1 0.6 0.5
Protective Packaging 0.1 0.7 0.8 2.4
Other � � � 0.2

Total $ 2.3 $ 2.2 $ 7.6 $ 5.9

(2)
The restructuring and other charges were primarily for termination benefits, the majority of which were related to the Food Packaging
segment. These charges were included in restructuring and other charges on the condensed consolidated statements of operations. See
Note 3, "Segments," for restructuring and other charges by reportable segment and Other. A reconciliation of the restructuring accrual
for the Company's global manufacturing strategy is included below.

        The components of the restructuring accrual through September 30, 2009 and the accrual balance remaining at September 30, 2009 were as
follows:

Restructuring accrual at December 31, 2008 $ 14.4
Cash payments made during 2009 (6.5)
Adjustment to accrual for termination benefits (0.4)
Effect of changes in foreign currency rates 0.2

Restructuring accrual at September 30, 2009 $ 7.7

        The Company expects to pay $7.0 million of the accrual balance remaining at September 30, 2009 within the next 12 months. This amount
is included in other current liabilities on the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2009. The remaining accrual of
$0.7 million is expected to be paid by the end of the first half of 2011 and is included in other liabilities on the Company's condensed
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2009.
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Operating Profit

        Management evaluates the performance of each reportable segment based on its operating profit. Operating profit by the Company's
segment reporting structure for the 2009 and 2008 periods was as follows:

Third
Quarter of

First Nine
Months of%

Change
%

Change2009 2008 2009 2008
Food Packaging $ 63.5 $ 36.9 72% $ 184.5 $ 150.1 23%
As a % of Food Packaging net sales 13.7% 7.7% 13.8% 10.2%

Food Solutions 21.4 17.1 25 66.3 52.3 27
As a % of Food Solutions net sales 9.3% 6.7% 10.1% 7.0%

Protective Packaging 41.4 39.6 5 108.1 130.3 (17)
As a % of Protective Packaging net sales 13.5% 10.5% 12.5% 11.4%

Other 4.8 6.9 (30) 10.5 13.4 (22)
As a % of Other net sales 5.9% 6.5% 4.4% 4.2%

Total segments and other 131.1 100.5 31 369.4 346.1 7
As a % of total net sales 12.1% 8.2% 11.9% 9.4%

Restructuring and other charges(1) 0.9 61.3 (99) 1.2 63.8 (98)

Total operating profit $ 130.2 $ 39.2 # $ 368.2 $ 282.3 30%

As a % of total net sales 12.1% 3.2% 11.9% 7.7%

#
Denotes a variance greater than 100%

(1)
The restructuring and other charges by the Company's segment reporting structure were as follows:

Third
Quarter of

First Nine
Months of

2009 2008 2009 2008
Food Packaging $ 0.6 $ 28.2 $ 1.0 $ 30.4
Food Solutions 0.1 11.8 0.3 12.0
Protective
Packaging 0.2 17.2 (0.1) 17.3
Other � 4.1 � 4.1

Total $ 0.9 $ 61.3 $ 1.2 $ 63.8

        See "Cost Reduction and Productivity Program and Global Manufacturing Strategy," above for further discussion of the Company's
restructuring and other charges.

Food Packaging Segment Operating Profit

        The increase in operating profit in both the third quarter and first nine months of 2009 compared with the same periods of 2008 was
primarily due to lower average petrochemical-based raw material costs of approximately $25.0 million in the third quarter of 2009 and
$65.0 million in the first nine months of 2009. The increase in operating profit as a percentage of Food Packaging net sales in the third quarter of
2009 compared with the same period of 2008 primarily reflected lower unit volumes and record high average petrochemical-based raw material
costs in 2008.

Food Solutions Segment Operating Profit
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        The increase in operating profit in both the third quarter and first nine months of 2009 compared with the same periods of 2008 was
primarily due to lower average petrochemical-based raw material costs of approximately $10.0 million in the third quarter of 2009 and
$30.0 million in the first nine months of 2009, partially offset by the decrease in unit volumes mentioned above. Food Solutions' operating profit
was unfavorably impacted in the third quarter and first nine months of 2008 by a
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$3.1 million pre-tax charge related to a product liability claim. See, "Other Litigation and Claims," of Note 14, "Commitments and
Contingencies," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding this claim.

Protective Packaging Segment Operating Profit

        The increase in operating profit in the third quarter of 2009 compared with the same period of 2008 was primarily due to lower average
petrochemical-based raw material costs of approximately $20.0 million, partially offset by lower unit volumes mentioned above.

        The decrease in operating profit in the first nine months of 2009 compared with the same period of 2008 was primarily due to lower unit
volumes mentioned above. Partially offsetting these declines were lower average petrochemical-based raw material costs of approximately
$60.0 million.

Other Operating Profit

        The decrease in operating profit in both the third quarter and the first nine months of 2009 compared with the same periods of 2008 was
primarily due to the lower unit volumes mentioned above.

Interest Expense

        The following table provides details of the Company's interest expense:

Third
Quarter of

First Nine
Months of

2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest expense on the amount payable pursuant to the
Settlement agreement $ 9.7 $ 9.2 $ 29.2 $ 27.7
Interest expense on the Company's senior notes:
5.375% Senior Notes matured April 2008 � � � 7.1
6.95% Senior Notes matured May 2009 � 4.0 3.6 12.1
3% Convertible Senior Notes redeemed July 2009 0.8 3.6 8.0 10.8
5.625% Senior Notes due July 2013 5.4 5.5 16.4 16.4
12% Senior Notes due February 2014 8.7 � 23.1 �
7.875% Senior Notes due June 2017 8.2 � 9.3 �
6.875% Senior Notes due July 2033 7.8 7.7 23.2 23.2

Other interest expense 2.4 3.1 7.2 6.8
Less: capitalized interest (1.1) (2.4) (5.4) (7.7)

Total $ 41.9 $ 30.7 $ 114.6 $ 96.4

        Interest expense on the Company's senior notes includes the amortization of capitalized senior debt issuance costs and bond discounts.

        As a result of the financing transactions discussed in "Liquidity and Capital Resources" below, the Company expects its full year 2009
interest expense to be approximately $155.0 million. This compares to $128.1 million of interest expense for the full year 2008.

Loss on Debt Redemption

        In the third quarter of 2009, the Company redeemed all $431.3 million of its 3% Convertible Senior Notes due 2033 and recorded a
$3.4 million pre-tax loss. This loss represented a 0.429% call premium of $1.9 million and a write-down of the remaining debt issuance costs
related to the issuance of these senior notes in July 2003 of $1.5 million. See Note 10, "Debt and Credit Facilities," of Notes to Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.
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Impairment of Available-for-Sale Securities

        At September 30, 2009, the Company's valuation of some of its auction rate security investments resulted in the recognition of
other-than-temporary impairment of $3.2 million ($2.0 million, net of taxes), which was recorded in the third quarter of 2009. See Note 5,
"Available-for-Sale Investments," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Other Expense, Net

        The following table provides details of the Company's other expense, net:

Third
Quarter of

First Nine
Months of

2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest and dividend income $ 2.0 $ 3.4 $ 6.0 $ 11.3
Net foreign exchange transaction losses (3.2) (1.5) (6.2) (7.5)
Settlement agreement and related costs (0.4) (0.8) (1.2) (1.4)
Noncontrolling interests 0.5 0.5 1.3 0.7
Other, net (1.3) (2.9) (4.1) (6.3)

Other expense, net $ (2.4) $ (1.3) $ (4.2) $ (3.2)

        Interest and dividend income decreased in the third quarter and first nine months of 2009 compared with the same periods in 2008,
primarily due to a decline in interest rates on the Company's short-term investments.

Income Taxes

        The Company's effective income tax rate was 23.6% for the third quarter of 2009 and 26.2% for the first nine months of 2009. The
Company's effective income tax rate was a benefit for the third quarter of 2008 and 21.5% for the first nine months of 2008.

        The Company's income tax provision for the third quarter and for the first nine months of 2009 included benefits related to the utilization of
income tax credits for which no benefit had previously been recognized for financial reporting purposes, partially offset by an increase in
reserves relating to uncertain tax positions.

        For the third quarter and for the first nine months of 2009, the Company's effective income tax rate was lower than the statutory U.S.
federal income tax rate of 35% primarily due to the lower net effective income tax rate on foreign earnings and income tax benefits described
above, partially offset by the increase in reserves described above and state income taxes.

        The Company's income tax provision for the first nine months of 2008 included the following income tax benefits:

�
a reduction in the estimated cost of repatriating certain foreign earnings,

�
a change in assertion made with regard to certain undistributed foreign earnings, and

�
the utilization of loss carryforwards in a foreign jurisdiction for which no benefit had previously been recognized for
financial reporting purposes.

        For the third quarter and for the first nine months of 2008, the Company's effective income tax rate was lower than the statutory U.S.
federal income tax rate of 35% primarily due to the lower net effective income tax rate on foreign earnings, as well as the income tax benefits
described above, partially offset by state income taxes.

        The Company's expected 2009 full year effective income tax rate is approximately 26%.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

        The information in this section sets forth material changes in and updates to material information contained in the Liquidity and Capital
Resources section of Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations set forth in Item 7 of Part II of
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and should be read in conjunction with that
discussion. Accordingly, the discussion that follows contains:

�
an updated description of the Company's material commitments and contingencies;

�
an updated description of the Company's material cash obligations and principal sources of liquidity;

�
an updated description of the Company's outstanding indebtedness;

�
an analysis of the Company's cash flows and changes of working capital for the first nine months of 2009;

�
an updated description of the Company's derivative financial instruments; and

�
a description of changes in the Company's stockholders' equity for the first nine months of 2009.

Material Commitments and Contingencies

Cryovac Transaction Commitments and Contingencies

        The Company recorded a charge of $850.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2002, of which $512.5 million represents a cash payment that the
Company is required to make (subject to the satisfaction of the terms and conditions of the Settlement agreement) upon the effectiveness of a
plan of reorganization in the bankruptcy of W.R. Grace & Co. The Company did not use cash in any period with respect to this liability. While
several hearings to consider confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan have been held and while closing arguments with respect to the PI Settlement
Plan are scheduled for January 4-5, 2010, the Company does not know whether or when a final plan of reorganization will become effective or
whether the final plan will be consistent with the terms of the Settlement agreement. The Company currently expects to fund this payment by
using a combination of accumulated cash and cash equivalents, future cash flows from operations and funds available under its revolving credit
facility or its accounts receivable securitization program, both described below. The cash payment of $512.5 million accrues interest at a 5.5%
annual rate, which is compounded annually, from December 21, 2002 to the date of payment. The Company has recorded this accrued interest in
Settlement agreement and related accrued interest on its condensed consolidated balance sheets, and these amounts were $224.5 million at
September 30, 2009 and $195.3 million at December 31, 2008.

        The information set forth in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in Note 14, "Commitments and Contingencies," of
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements under the caption "Cryovac Transaction Commitments and Contingencies" is
incorporated herein by reference.

MPERS Lawsuit and Other Litigation and Claims

        The information set forth in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in Note 14, "Commitments and Contingencies," of
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements under the captions "MPERS Lawsuit," and "Other Litigation and Claims" is incorporated
herein by reference.
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Material Cash Obligations and Principal Sources of Liquidity

        The Company requires cash to fund its operating expenses, capital expenditures, interest, taxes and dividend payments and to pay its debt
obligations and other long-term liabilities as they come due. The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations,
accumulated cash and cash equivalents and amounts available under its existing lines of credit described below, including the revolving credit
facility and the ANZ facility, and its accounts receivable securitization program.

        In 2009, the Company redeemed all $431.3 million of its 3% Convertible Senior Notes, retired all of its outstanding 6.95% Senior Notes
and issued $400.0 million of 7.875% Senior Notes and $300.0 million of 12% Senior Notes. As a result of these transactions, the Company
expects to incur a net additional $30.0 million of interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to 2008. The Company
believes that its current liquidity position and future cash flows from operations will enable it to fund the Company's operations, including the
items mentioned above and the cash payment under the Settlement agreement should it become payable within the next 12 months.

        With respect to the Settlement agreement, the Company does not know whether or when a final plan of reorganization for Grace will
become effective or whether the final plan will be consistent with the terms of the Settlement agreement. See "Cryovac Transaction
Commitments and Contingencies," above for further discussion. Grace's PI Settlement Plan is subject to the satisfaction of a number of
conditions, including the availability of exit financing and the approval of both the Bankruptcy Court and United States District Court for the
District of Delaware, adding to the uncertainty as to when the plan might become effective.

        Tax benefits resulting from the payment made under the Settlement agreement, which are currently recorded as deferred tax assets on the
Company's condensed consolidated balance sheets, are anticipated to provide approximately $350.0 million of current and future cash tax
benefits at the time the payment under the Settlement agreement is made. The amount and timing of future cash tax benefits could vary,
depending on the amount of cash paid by the Company and various facts and circumstances at the time of payment under the Settlement
agreement, including the price of the Company's common stock, the Company's tax position and the applicable tax codes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

        The following table summarizes the Company's accumulated cash and cash equivalents:

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Cash and cash equivalents $ 487.1 $ 128.9
        See "Analysis of Historical Cash Flows" below.

58

Edgar Filing: SEALED AIR CORP/DE - Form 10-Q

81



Table of Contents

Lines of Credit

        The following table summarizes the Company's available committed and uncommitted lines of credit, including the credit facility and the
ANZ facility, which are discussed below:

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008

Used lines of credit $ 43.1 $ 46.7
Unused lines of credit 846.7 773.4

Total available lines of credit $ 889.8 $ 820.1

Available lines of credit�committed $ 620.3 $ 588.8
Available lines of credit�uncommitted 269.5 231.3

Total available lines of credit $ 889.8 $ 820.1

        The Company's principal credit lines were all committed and consisted of the revolving credit facility and the ANZ facility. The Company
is not subject to any material compensating balance requirements in connection with its lines of credit.

Revolving Credit Facilities

        The Revolving Credit Facility�The Company has a $500.0 million unsecured multi-currency revolving credit facility, which has an
expiration date of July 26, 2012.

        The revolving credit facility commitments include $28.0 million provided by Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., a subsidiary of Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc. As a result of the bankruptcy filing of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries in September 2008,
Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. is no longer funding borrowing requests under the revolving credit facility. At September 30, 2009, the total
amount available and unused under the revolving credit facility was $472.0 million.

        ANZ Facility�The Company has a 170.0 million Australian dollar, dual-currency revolving credit facility due March 2010, which was
equivalent to $148.3 million at September 30, 2009. A syndicate of banks made this facility available to a group of the Company's Australian
and New Zealand subsidiaries for general corporate purposes, including refinancing of previously outstanding indebtedness. The Company may
re-borrow amounts repaid under the ANZ facility from time to time prior to the expiration or earlier termination of the facility. The Company
plans to renew or replace the ANZ prior to its expiration date. However, the Company cannot give assurance that it will be able to renew or
replace this facility. The Company has not utilized this facility in 2009, and at September 30, 2009, there were no amounts outstanding under
this facility.

        See Note 10, "Debt and Credit Facilities," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Accounts Receivable Securitization Program

        The Company and a group of its U.S. subsidiaries maintain an accounts receivable securitization program with a bank and an issuer of
commercial paper administered by the bank. At September 30, 2009, the maximum purchase limit for receivables interests was $160.0 million
and the program had an expiration date of December 2, 2012. The program includes a bank financing commitment that must be renewed
annually prior to the expiration date. The bank commitment is scheduled to expire on December 4, 2009. The Company is currently seeking an
additional 364 day renewal of the bank commitment prior to its expiration. While the bank is not obligated to renew the bank financing
commitment, the Company has negotiated annual renewals since the commencement of the program in 2001.
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        The amounts available from time to time under the program may be less than $160.0 million subject to the level of the eligible assets
included in the U.S. accounts receivable portfolio. The level of eligible assets can be impacted by a number of factors, including, but not limited
to, accounts receivable balances, the Company's credit rating, the Company's receivables collection experience and the creditworthiness of the
Company's customers. During 2009, the level of eligible assets available under the program declined primarily due to lower accounts receivable
balances and, to a lesser extent, the Company's current credit rating. As a result, the amount available to the Company under the program
decreased to approximately $79.2 million at September 30, 2009 from approximately $143.0 million available at December 31, 2008. Although
the Company does not believe that these restrictive provisions presently materially restrict its operations, a breach of one or more of these
restrictive provisions could result in a further decline in, or the elimination of, amounts available under the program.

        See Note 6, "Accounts Receivable Securitization Program," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information concerning this program.

Covenants

        At September 30, 2009, the Company was in compliance with its financial covenants and limitations, as discussed in "Covenants," of
Note 10, "Debt and Credit Facilities," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Debt Ratings

        The Company's cost of capital and ability to obtain external financing may be affected by its debt ratings, which the credit rating agencies
review periodically. The Company's long-term senior unsecured debt rating is currently rated BB+ (stable outlook) by Standard & Poor's. This
rating is considered non-investment grade. The Company's long-term senior unsecured debt rating is currently rated Baa3 (negative outlook) by
Moody's. This rating is considered investment grade. If the Company's credit ratings are downgraded, there could be a negative impact on the
Company's ability to access capital markets and borrowing costs could increase. A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating organization. Each rating should be evaluated independently of
any other rating.

Outstanding Indebtedness

        See Note 10, "Debt and Credit Facilities," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for information on the Company's
outstanding debt.

Analysis of Historical Cash Flows

        The following table summarizes the Company's changes in cash flows for the first nine months of September 30, 2009 and 2008:

Nine Months
Ended

September 30, Increase
(Decrease)

%
Increase
(Decrease)2009 2008

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 358.7 $ 326.1 $ 32.6 10.0%
Net cash used in investing activities (57.3) (139.0) (81.7) (58.8)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 48.2 (366.2) 414.4 #

#
Denotes a change equal to or greater than 100%
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Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

        The increase in net cash provided from operating activities primarily resulted from:

�
a decrease in cash used for inventories of $133.4 million, primarily due to management's efforts to maintain lower inventory
levels in line with lower sales volumes and the benefit of lower average petrochemical-based raw material costs experienced
in 2009;

�
an increase in cash generated from receivables, net, of $128.4 million, primarily attributable to the impact of lower net sales
in 2009 and, to a lesser extent, improved collections in 2009; and

�
an increase in net earnings adjusted for non-cash activity of $24.7 million primarily due to a $46.6 million increase in net
earnings in 2009.

        partially offset by:

�
a decrease of net cash of $215.0 million resulting from the repurchases in 2009 and sales in 2008 of receivable interests
under the Company's accounts receivable securitization program. The Company used available cash of $80.0 million to fund
the repurchase of receivable interests in 2009, compared with the receipt of $135.0 million in cash from the sale of
receivable interests in 2008; and

�
an increase in cash used for accounts payable of $45.9 million, primarily due to the timing of payments.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

        The decrease in net cash used in investing activities was primarily due to lower capital expenditures in 2009 compared with 2008. Capital
expenditures decreased $81.7 million in 2009 compared with 2008, primarily due to the substantial completion of the construction phase in the
fourth quarter of 2008 of three new plants in developing markets associated with the Company's global manufacturing strategy.

        The Company expects to continue to invest capital as it deems appropriate to expand its business, to maintain or replace depreciating
property, plant and equipment, to acquire new manufacturing technology and to improve productivity. Taking into account a reduction of capital
expenditures for the Company's global manufacturing strategy in 2009, the Company expects total capital expenditures in 2009 to be in the
range of $80.0 million to $100.0 million. This projected range is comparable to the level of capital expenditures incurred prior to implementing
the Company's global manufacturing strategy in 2006. This projection is based upon the Company's capital expenditure budget for 2009, the
status of approved but not yet completed capital projects, anticipated future projects and historic spending trends.

Net Cash Provided By (Used in) Financing Activities

        The increase in proceeds from long-term debt of $620.8 million in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to net proceeds of
$684.3 million received from the Company's issuances of $300.0 million of 12% Senior Notes in February 2009 and $400.0 million of 7.875%
Senior Notes in June 2009. This compares to proceeds from long-term debt of $83.0 million in 2008 from the Company's credit facility.

        The increase in payments of long-term debt of $280.2 was primarily due to the Company's redemption of all of its 3% Convertible Senior
Notes with a face value of $431.3 million in July 2009 and the retirement of its remaining outstanding $136.7 million of 6.95% Senior Notes in
May 2009. In April 2008, the Company retired its 5.375% Senior Notes with a face value of $300.0 million, on its maturity date.
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        Also contributing to the increase in cash provided by financing activities was a decrease in cash used for the repurchase of the Company's
common stock. During 2009, the Company did not repurchase any of its common stock, compared with $95.1 million of cash used for common
stock repurchases in 2008.

Changes in Working Capital

September 30,
2009

December 31,
2008 Increase

Working capital (current assets less current liabilities) $ 490.2 $ 50.5 $ 439.7
Current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) 1.3x 1.0x
Quick ratio (current assets, less inventories divided by current liabilities) 1.0x 0.7x
        The increase in working capital in the first nine months of 2009 was primarily due to the following factors:

�
an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $358.2 million. See "Analysis of Historical Cash Flows" above for details of the
factors that contributed to the increase in cash and cash equivalents;

�
a decrease in current portion of long-term debt of $145.9 million. This decrease was primarily due to the retirement of the
remaining $136.7 million 6.95% Senior Notes in May 2009;

�
a decrease in accounts payable of $49.1 million, which reflected a decline in days-payable-outstanding, primarily due to the
timing of payments. Also contributing to this decrease was lower purchases of raw materials as a result of a lower volume of
net sales and lower raw material unit costs experienced in the first nine months of 2009; and

�
a decrease in accrued restructuring costs of $30.4 million, primarily due to payments made for termination benefits accrued
in connection with the Company's cost reduction and productivity program.

        These factors were partially offset by:

�
a decrease in inventories of $51.1 million. Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation of $24.7 million, inventories
would have decreased $75.8 million, which reflected lower petrochemical-based raw material costs and management's
efforts to maintain lower inventory levels primarily in Europe and North America in line with the lower volume of net sales,
mostly within the Protective Packaging segment, experienced in 2009.

�
a decrease in deferred taxes of $50.9 million due to a reclassification of a portion of the deferred tax asset related to the
Settlement agreement to non-current based on the current anticipated timing of the related tax benefit;

�
an increase in accrued interest of $29.2 million related to the Settlement agreement; and

�
an increase in other current liabilities of $36.7 million, primarily due to an increase in accrued payroll of $23.9 million,
which reflected the 2009 accruals for management incentive compensation expenses, partially offset by payments made in
March of 2009 for 2008 management incentive compensation expenses.

        Foreign currency translation had a net favorable impact on working capital of approximately $33.7 million.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Interest Rate Swaps

        At September 30, 2009, the Company was party to interest rate swap agreements, which did not have a significant impact on the Company's
liquidity.

        The information set forth in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in Note 11, "Derivatives and Hedging Activities," of
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements under the caption "Interest Rate Swaps" is incorporated herein by reference.

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

        At September 30, 2009, the Company was party to foreign currency forward contracts, which did not have a significant impact on the
Company's liquidity.

        The information set forth in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in Note 11, "Derivatives and Hedging Activities," of
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements under the caption "Foreign Currency Forward Contracts" is incorporated herein by
reference.

        For further discussion about these contracts and other financial instruments, see Part I, Item 3, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk."

Stockholders' Equity

        The Company's stockholders' equity was $2,172.5 million at September 30, 2009 and $1,925.6 million at December 31, 2008. Stockholders'
equity increased $246.9 million, or 12.8% in the first nine months of 2009, primarily due to the impact of the following:

�
net earnings of $179.2 million;

�
positive foreign currency translation of $88.6 million; and

�
a decrease in common stock in treasury of $19.5 million resulting from the use of 0.5 million shares of common stock in
2009 as part of the Company's 2008 contribution to its employee profit-sharing plan.

        The items above were partially offset by dividends paid and accrued on the Company's common stock of $57.5 million.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

        The Company is subject to recently issued accounting standards, accounting guidance and disclosure requirements. Note 2, "Recent
Accounting Standards," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements which is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q, describes these new accounting standards and is incorporated herein by reference.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

        For a discussion of the Company's critical accounting policies and estimates, refer to "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations�Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" in Part II, Item 7 of the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Non-GAAP Information

        The Company's management from time to time presents information that does not conform to U.S. GAAP. In this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, the Company has presented financial measures
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that exclude items that are included in U.S. GAAP calculations of such measures. This report sets forth measures of (i) net sales, (ii) cost of
sales, (iii) marketing, administrative and development expenses and (iv) inventories excluding the effects of foreign currency translation.
Presenting these results in this manner aids in the comparisons with other periods and with prior guidance from the Company. The Company's
management uses these measures to evaluate the performance of the Company's operations. Such measures are also among the criteria upon
which performance-based compensation may be determined. Thus, management believes that this information may be useful to investors in their
evaluation of the Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

 Item 3.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

        The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in the conditions in the U.S. financial markets, interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates and commodity prices and the creditworthiness of the Company's customers, which may adversely affect its consolidated
financial position and results of operations. The Company seeks to minimize these risks through regular operating and financing activities and,
when deemed appropriate, through the use of derivative financial instruments. The Company does not purchase, hold or sell derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes.

Available-for-Sale Investments

        The Company's available-for-sale investments, consisting of auction rate securities at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, are
exposed to market risk related to changes in conditions in the U.S. financial markets and in the financial condition of the issuers of these
securities. The Company's investment in auction rate securities at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 had an original cost of
$44.7 million (debt instruments of $24.7 million and non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock of $20.0 million).

        These auction rate securities consisted of two contingent capital securities that were converted into perpetual preferred stock of Ambac
Assurance Corporation (AMBAC), the issuer, in December 2008, and three debt instruments issued individually by Primus Financial
Products LLC (Primus) (maturity date 2021), River Lake Insurance Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Genworth Financial, Inc.
(Genworth) (maturity date 2033) and Ballantyne Re Plc (Ballantyne) (maturity date 2036).

        These five securities historically were re-auctioned every twenty-eight days, which had provided a liquid market for them. However, as a
result of continuing liquidity concerns affecting capital markets, particularly in the U.S., specifically for asset-backed securities, every auction
held by the issuers for these auction rate securities in 2008 and thus far in 2009 failed. The Company received interest and dividend payments of
$0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and $1.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009.

        The Company accounts for these investments as available-for-sale investments and determines whether a decline in fair value below its cost
is temporary or other than temporary on a security-by-security basis. The objective of other-than-temporary impairment analysis under
U.S. GAAP is to determine whether the holder of an investment in a debt or equity security for which changes in fair value are not regularly
recognized in earnings should recognize a loss in earnings when the investment is impaired. An investment is impaired if the fair value of the
investment is less than its amortized cost.

        The Company continues to closely monitor developments in the market for auction rate securities including the specific securities in which
it has invested. At September 30, 2009, the securities issuers that were rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. had ratings that ranged from
Baa3 to Ca2 and ratings by Standard & Poor's, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., that ranged from BBB to C. At September 30,
2009, neither AMBAC nor Primus had a rating by Moody's and Primus was not
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rated by Standards & Poor's. The Company believes that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its operating cash needs without the sale of these
securities.

        If credit or liquidity conditions relating to these securities or the issuers worsen, the Company may recognize additional
other-than-temporary impairments, which would result in the recognition of additional losses on its condensed consolidated statement of
operations.

        The Company's available-for-sale investments are described in more detail in Note 5, "Available-for-Sale Investments," of Notes to
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest Rates

        From time to time, the Company may use interest rate swaps, collars or options to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates.

        At September 30, 2009, the Company had outstanding interest rate swaps, but no collars or options outstanding.

        The information set forth in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in Note 11, "Derivatives and Hedging Activities," of
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements under the caption "Interest Rate Swaps" is incorporated herein by reference.

        Also, see Note 10, "Debt and Credit Facilities," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on the
Company's total debt and Note 12, "Fair Value Measurements," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for information on
the fair value of the Company's total debt.

Foreign Exchange Rates

        The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to fix the amount payable on transactions denominated in foreign currencies. A
hypothetical 10% adverse change in foreign exchange rates at September 30, 2009 would have caused the Company to pay approximately
$44.6 million to terminate these contracts.

        The Company's foreign currency forward contracts are described in Note 11, "Derivatives and Hedging Activities," of Notes to Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements, which is contained in Part I, Item 1 and in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations�Liquidity and Capital Resources�Derivative Financial Instruments�Foreign Currency Forward Contracts," contained in
Part I, Item 2 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Customer Credit

        The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to its customers if
they satisfy pre-defined credit criteria. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the failure
of its customers to make required payments. An additional allowance may be required if the financial condition of the Company's customers
deteriorates. The allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained at a level that management assesses to be appropriate to absorb estimated losses
in the accounts receivable portfolio.

        The Company's customers may default on their obligations to the Company due to bankruptcy, lack of liquidity, operational failure or other
reasons. Despite uncertainties surrounding current global economic conditions and levels of credit risk, as of September 30, 2009, the Company
has not experienced a significant change in its customers' payment patterns or defaults. The Company's provision for bad debt expense was
nominal in the third quarter of 2009 and $3.7 million for the first nine months of 2009, $2.4 million in the third quarter of 2008 and $4.6 million
for the first nine months of 2008.
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 Item 4.    Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

        The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company's reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's
rules and forms and that the Company's employees accumulate this information and communicate it to the Company's management, including its
Chief Executive Officer (its principal executive officer) and its Chief Financial Officer (its principal financial officer), as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding the required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes
that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only "reasonable assurance" of achieving the desired
control objectives, and management necessarily must apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and
procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

        As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
the Company's disclosure controls and procedures under Rule 13a-15. The Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, supervised and participated in this evaluation. Based upon that evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the "reasonable
assurance" level.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

        There has not been any change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2009 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

 PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

 Item 1.    Legal Proceedings.

        The information set forth in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in Note 14, "Commitments and Contingencies," of
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements under the captions "Cryovac Transaction Commitments and Contingencies," "MPERS
Lawsuit," and "Other Litigation and Claims," is incorporated herein by reference. See also Part I, Item 3, "Legal Proceedings," of the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and Part II, Item 1, "Legal Proceedings," of the Company's Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2009 and June 30, 2009, as well as the information incorporated by reference
in those items.

 Item 1A.    Risk Factors.

        The Company set forth the most significant risk factors that it faces in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors," of its Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. The information presented below should be considered in place of the risk factors disclosed in the
Company's 2008 Form 10-K. Except as required by the federal securities laws, the Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise any
risk factor, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Introduction

        Investors should carefully consider the risks described below before making an investment decision. These are the most significant risk
factors; however, they are not the only risk factors that should be considered in making an investment decision. This Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q also may include or incorporate by reference forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. See the "Cautionary
Notice Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" below. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including the risks faced by us described below and elsewhere in this report or in
documents incorporated by reference in this report. Our business, consolidated financial position or results of operations could be materially
adversely affected by any of these risks. The trading price of our securities could decline due to any of these risks, and investors in our securities
may lose all or part of their investment.

         If the settlement of the asbestos-related claims that we have agreed to (the "Settlement agreement") is not implemented, we will not be
released from the various asbestos-related, fraudulent transfer, successor liability, and indemnification claims made against us arising from
a 1998 transaction with W. R. Grace & Co. Further, we are a defendant in a lawsuit seeking class action status concerning our public
disclosures regarding these asbestos-related claims. We are also a defendant in a number of asbestos-related actions in Canada arising from
W. R. Grace & Co.'s activities in Canada prior to the 1998 transaction.

        On November 27, 2002, we reached an agreement in principle with the Official Committee of Asbestos Personal Injury Claimants (the
"ACC") and the Official Committee of Asbestos Property Damage Claimants appointed to represent asbestos claimants in the W. R.
Grace & Co. ("Grace") bankruptcy case to resolve all current and future asbestos-related claims made against us and our affiliates. The
Settlement agreement will also resolve the fraudulent transfer claims and successor liability claims, as well as indemnification claims by
Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc. and affiliated companies in connection with the Cryovac transaction. The Cryovac transaction was a
multi-step transaction, completed on March 31, 1998, which brought the Cryovac packaging business and the former Sealed Air Corporation's
business under the common ownership of us. The parties to the agreement in principle signed the definitive Settlement agreement as of
November 10, 2003 consistent with the terms of the agreement in principle. On June 27, 2005, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the District of
Delaware, where the Grace bankruptcy case is pending, signed an order approving the definitive Settlement agreement. Although Grace is not a
party to the Settlement agreement, under the terms of the order, Grace is directed to comply with the Settlement agreement subject to limited
exceptions. If the Settlement agreement does not become effective, either because Grace fails to emerge from bankruptcy or because Grace does
not emerge from bankruptcy with a plan of reorganization that is consistent with the terms of the Settlement agreement, then we will not be
released from the various asbestos-related, fraudulent transfer, successor liability, and indemnification claims made against us and our affiliates
noted above, and all of these claims would remain pending and would have to be resolved through other means, such as through agreement on
alternative settlement terms or trials. In that case, we could face liabilities that are significantly different from our obligations under the
Settlement agreement. We cannot estimate at this time what those differences or their magnitude may be. In the event these liabilities are
materially larger than the current existing obligations, they could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position and results
of operations.

        On September 19, 2008, Grace, the ACC, the Asbestos PI Future Claimants' Representative (the "FCR"), and the Official Committee of
Equity Security Holders (the "Equity Committee") filed, as co-proponents, a plan of reorganization (as filed and amended from time to time, the
"PI Settlement Plan") and several exhibits and associated documents, including a disclosure statement (as filed and amended from time to time,
the "PI Settlement Disclosure Statement"), with the Bankruptcy Court.
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Amended versions of the PI Settlement Plan and the PI Settlement Disclosure Statement have been filed with the Bankruptcy Court from time to
time. As filed, the PI Settlement Plan would provide for the establishment of two asbestos trusts under Section 524(g) of the United States
Bankruptcy Code to which present and future asbestos-related claims would be channeled. The PI Settlement Plan also contemplates that the
terms of our definitive Settlement agreement will be incorporated into the PI Settlement Plan and that we will pay the amount contemplated by
that agreement.

        On March 9, 2009, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the PI Settlement Disclosure Statement (the "DS Order") as containing
adequate information and authorizing Grace to solicit votes to accept or reject the PI Settlement Plan, all as more fully described in the order.
The DS Order does not constitute the Bankruptcy Court's confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan, approval of the merits of the PI Settlement
Plan, or endorsement of the PI Settlement Plan. In connection with the plan voting process in the Grace bankruptcy case, we have voted in favor
of the PI Settlement Plan that is currently before the Bankruptcy Court. We will continue to review any amendments to the PI Settlement Plan on
an ongoing basis to verify compliance with the Settlement agreement.

        On June 8, 2009, a senior manager with the voting agent appointed in the Grace bankruptcy case filed a declaration with the Bankruptcy
Court certifying the voting results with respect to the PI Settlement Plan, which declaration was amended on August 5, 2009 (as amended, the
"Voting Declaration"). According to the Voting Declaration, with respect to each class of claims designated as impaired by Grace, the PI
Settlement Plan has been approved by holders of at least two-thirds in amount and more than one-half in number (or for classes voting for
purposes of Section 524(g) of the Bankruptcy Code, at least 75% in number) of voted claims. The Voting Declaration also discusses the voting
results with respect to holders of general unsecured claims ("GUCs") against Grace, whose votes have been provisionally solicited and counted
subject to a determination by the Bankruptcy Court of whether GUCs are impaired (and, thus, entitled to vote) or, as Grace contends, unimpaired
(and, thus, not entitled to vote). The Voting Declaration provides that more than one half of voting holders of GUCs have voted to accept the PI
Settlement Plan, but that the provisional vote has not obtained the requisite two-thirds dollar amount to be deemed an accepting class in the
event that GUCs are determined to be impaired. The Bankruptcy Court has yet to determine whether GUCs are impaired under the PI Settlement
Plan. To the extent that GUCs are determined to be an impaired non-accepting class, Grace and the other plan proponents have indicated that
they will nevertheless seek confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan under the "cram down" provisions contained in section 1129(b) of the
Bankruptcy Code.

        If confirmed, the PI Settlement Plan may implement the terms of the Settlement agreement, but there can be no assurance that this will be
the case. The terms of the PI Settlement Plan remain subject to amendment. Moreover, the PI Settlement Plan is subject to the satisfaction of a
number of conditions, including the availability of exit financing and the approval of both the Bankruptcy Court and United States District Court
for the District of Delaware (the "District Court"). A number of objections to the PI Settlement Plan have been filed and remain unresolved, and
certain of these objections concern injunctions, releases and provisions as applied to us and/or that are contemplated by the Settlement
agreement. The Bankruptcy Court conducted hearings to consider confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan on June 22-23, 2009, September 8-11,
September 14-17, 2009, and October 13-14, 2009. Closing arguments with respect to the PI Settlement Plan are scheduled to take place before
the Bankruptcy Court on January 4-5, 2010.

        While several hearings to consider confirmation of the PI Settlement Plan have been held and while closing arguments are scheduled for
January 4-5, 2010, we do not know whether or when a final plan of reorganization will become effective. Assuming that a final plan of
reorganization (whether the PI Settlement Plan or another plan of reorganization) is confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court, approved by the
District Court, and does become effective, we do not know whether the final plan of reorganization will be consistent with the terms of the
Settlement agreement or if the other conditions
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to our obligation to pay the Settlement agreement amount will be met. If these conditions are not satisfied or not waived by the Company, we
will not be obligated to pay the amount contemplated by the Settlement agreement. However, if we do not pay the Settlement agreement amount,
we and our affiliates will not be released from the various asbestos-related, fraudulent transfer, successor liability, and indemnification claims
made against us and all of these claims would remain pending and would have to be resolved through other means, such as through agreement
on alternative settlement terms or trials. In that case, we could face liabilities that are significantly different from our obligations under the
Settlement agreement. We cannot estimate at this time what those differences or their magnitude may be. In the event these liabilities are
materially larger than the current existing obligations, they could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position and results
of operations.

        Since November 2004, the Company and specified subsidiaries have been named as defendants in a number of cases, including a number of
putative class actions, brought in Canada as a result of Grace's alleged marketing, manufacturing or distributing of asbestos or
asbestos-containing products in Canada prior to the Cryovac transaction in 1998. Grace has agreed to defend and indemnify us and our
subsidiaries in these cases. The Canadian cases are currently stayed. A global settlement of these Canadian claims to be funded by Grace has
been approved by the Canadian court, and the PI Settlement Plan provides for payment of these claims. However, by its terms, this global
settlement with respect to Canadian claims was, unless amended, to have become null and void if a confirmation order in the Grace U.S.
bankruptcy proceeding was not granted prior to October 31, 2009. As indicated, no confirmation order has yet been entered in the Grace U.S.
Bankruptcy proceeding and there can be no assurance that the Canadian Settlement will be amended to allow the settlement to continue in place.
Furthermore, if a final plan of reorganization that is confirmed and becomes effective does not provide for these claims or if the Canadian courts
refuse to enforce the final plan of reorganization in the Canadian courts, and if in addition Grace is unwilling or unable to defend and indemnify
us and our subsidiaries in these cases, then we could be required to pay substantial damages, which we cannot estimate at this time and which
could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

        The Company is a defendant in the case of MPERS v. Sealed Air Corporation, et al. (Case No. 03-CV-4372) in the U.S. District Court for
the District of New Jersey (Newark). This lawsuit seeks class action status on behalf of all persons who purchased or otherwise acquired
securities of ours during the period from March 27, 2000 through July 30, 2002. The lawsuit named the Company and five current and former
officers and directors of the Company as defendants. One of these individuals and the Company remain as defendants after a partial grant of the
defendants' motion to dismiss the action. The plaintiff's principal allegations against the defendants are that during the above period the
defendants materially misled the investing public, artificially inflated the price of our common stock by publicly issuing false and misleading
statements and violated U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, or U.S. GAAP, by failing to properly account and accrue for our
contingent liability for asbestos claims arising from past operations of Grace. The plaintiffs seek unspecified compensatory damages and other
relief. On April 27, 2009, we reached an agreement in principle with the plaintiffs to settle the MPERS v. Sealed Air Corporation, et al. case,
subject to documentation and Court approval. The agreement provides for payment of $20.0 million, which will be nearly fully funded by our
primary and excess insurance carriers. If the settlement in this case is not given final approval by the Court, then, should we be found liable in
this case, we could be required to pay substantial damages, which we cannot estimate at this time and which could have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

        For further information concerning these matters, see Note 14, "Commitments and Contingencies," of Notes to Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements, which is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, under the captions "Cryovac Transaction
Commitments and Contingencies" and "MPERS Lawsuit."
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         Weakened global economic conditions have had and could continue to have an adverse effect on our consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

        Weakened global economic conditions can have an adverse impact on our business in the form of lower sales due to weakened demand,
unfavorable changes in product price/mix, and lower profit margins.

        During periods of economic recession, there can be a heightened competition for sales and increased pressure to reduce selling prices. If we
lose significant sales volume or reduce selling prices significantly, then there could be a negative impact on our revenue, profitability and cash
flows.

        Also, reduced availability of credit may adversely affect the ability of some of our customers and suppliers to obtain funds for operations
and capital expenditures. This could negatively impact our ability to obtain necessary supplies as well as our sales of materials and equipment to
affected customers, and could result in reduced collections of outstanding accounts receivable.

         A downgrade of our credit ratings could have a negative impact on our costs and ability to access credit markets.

        In January 2009, Standard & Poor's revised our long-term senior unsecured debt rating from BBB- to BB+ and revised the outlook to
stable. The revised rating is considered below investment grade. Our long-term senior unsecured debt rating is currently rated Baa3 (negative
outlook) by Moody's. This rating is considered investment grade. If our credit ratings are further downgraded, there could be a negative impact
on our ability to access capital markets and borrowing costs could increase.

         The effects of animal and food-related health issues such as bovine spongiform encephalopathy, also known as "mad cow" disease,
foot-and-mouth disease and avian influenza or "bird-flu," as well as other health issues affecting the food industry, may lead to decreased
revenues.

        We manufacture and sell food packaging and food solutions products, among other products. Various health issues affecting the food
industry have in the past and may in the future have a negative effect on the sales of food packaging and food solutions products. In recent years,
occasional cases of mad cow disease have been confirmed and incidents of bird flu have surfaced in various countries. Outbreaks of animal
diseases such as mad cow or foot-and-mouth disease, for example, may lead governments to restrict exports and imports of potentially affected
animals and food products, leading to decreased demand for our products and possibly also to the culling or slaughter of significant numbers of
the animal population otherwise intended for food supply. Also, consumers may change their eating habits as a result of perceived problems with
certain types of food. These factors may lead to reduced sales of food packaging and food solutions products, which could have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

         The global nature of our operations in the United States and in 51 foreign countries exposes us to numerous risks that could materially
adversely affect our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

        We operate in the United States and in 51 other countries, and our products are distributed in those countries as well as in other parts of the
world. A large portion of our manufacturing operations are located outside of the United States. Operations outside of the United States,
particularly operations in emerging markets, are subject to various risks that may not be present or as significant for our U.S. operations.
Economic uncertainty in some of the geographic regions in which we operate, including emerging markets, could result in the disruption of
commerce and negatively impact cash flows from our operations in those areas.
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        Risks inherent in our international operations include social plans that prohibit or increase the cost of certain restructuring actions;
exchange controls; foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations including devaluations; the potential for changes in local economic conditions
including local inflationary pressures; restrictive governmental actions such as those on transfer or repatriation of funds and trade protection
matters, including antidumping duties, tariffs, embargoes and prohibitions or restrictions on acquisitions or joint ventures; changes in laws and
regulations, including the laws and policies of the United States affecting trade and foreign investment; the difficulty of enforcing agreements
and collecting receivables through certain foreign legal systems; variations in protection of intellectual property and other legal rights; more
expansive legal rights of foreign unions or works councils; the potential for nationalization of enterprises or facilities; and unsettled political
conditions and possible terrorist attacks against United States' or other interests. In addition, there are potential tax inefficiencies in repatriating
funds from our non-U.S. subsidiaries.

        These and other factors may have a material adverse effect on our international operations and, consequently, on our consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

         Concerns about greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and climate change and the resulting governmental and market responses to these
issues could significantly increase costs that we incur and could otherwise materially adversely affect our consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

        Numerous legislative and regulatory initiatives have been enacted and proposed in response to concerns about GHG emissions and climate
change. We are a manufacturing entity that utilizes petrochemical-based raw materials to produce many of our products, including plastic
packaging materials. Increased environmental legislation or regulation could result in higher costs to us for raw materials, energy and
transportation. Compliance costs for monitoring and reporting emissions and for maintaining permits could likewise increase. Also, we could
face increased operating costs and capital expenditures in order to comply with any such legislation or regulation.

         The disruption and volatility of the financial and credit markets could affect our external liquidity sources.

        Our principal sources of liquidity are accumulated cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, cash flow from operations and
amounts available under our existing lines of credit, including our revolving credit facility and the ANZ facility, and our accounts receivable
securitization program, as described in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, which is
included in Part I, Item 2 of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q.

        Our accounts receivable securitization program includes a bank financing commitment that must be renewed annually prior to the
expiration date. The bank commitment is scheduled to expire on December 4, 2009. We are seeking an additional 364 day renewal of the bank
commitment prior to its expiration. While the bank is not obligated to renew the bank financing commitment, we have negotiated annual
renewals since the commencement of the program in 2001.

        The ANZ facility is scheduled to expire in March 2010. We plan to renew or replace the ANZ facility prior to its expiration date. However,
we cannot give assurance that we will be able to renew or replace this facility.

        Additionally, current conditions in financial markets, including the bankruptcy and restructuring of certain financial institutions, could
affect financial institutions with which we have relationships and could result in adverse effects on our ability to utilize fully our committed
borrowing facilities. For example, another lender under the revolving credit facility may be unwilling or unable to fund a borrowing request, and
we may not be able to replace such lender.
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         Covenant restrictions under our credit arrangements may pose a risk.

        We have a number of credit facilities, including our revolving credit facility and our ANZ facility, and also have an accounts receivable
securitization program, and have issued debt securities to manage liquidity and fund operations as described in Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, which is included in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q in Part I, Item 2. The
agreements relating to these facilities and securities generally contain certain restrictive covenants, including the incurrence of additional
indebtedness, restriction of liens and sale and leaseback transactions, financial covenants relating to interest coverage, debt leverage and
minimum liquidity, and restrictions on consolidation and merger transactions, as well as, in some cases, restrictions on amendments to the
Settlement agreement. In addition, amounts available under our accounts receivable securitization program can be impacted by a number of
factors, including, but not limited to, our credit rating, accounts receivable balances, the creditworthiness of our customers and our receivables
collection experience. As a result of the impact of some of these factors, the amount available to the Company under the program has decreased.
Although we do not believe that any of these covenants or other restrictive provisions presently materially restricts our operations, a breach of
one or more of the covenants or other restrictive provisions could result in material adverse consequences that could negatively impact our
business, consolidated results of operations and financial position and could result in a further decline in, or the elimination of, amounts
available under the accounts receivable securitization program. Such adverse consequences may include the acceleration of amounts outstanding
under certain of the facilities, triggering the obligation to redeem certain debt securities, termination of existing unused commitments by our
lenders or the bank commitment related to our accounts receivable securitization program, refusal by lenders to extend further credit under one
or more of the facilities or new facilities, or the lowering or modification of our credit ratings.

         Strengthening of the U.S. dollar and other foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations could materially impact our consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

        During 2008, approximately 55% of our sales originated outside the United States. We translate sales and other results denominated in
foreign currency into U.S. dollars for the consolidated financial statements. During periods of a strengthening U.S. dollar, our reported
international sales and earnings could be reduced because foreign currencies may translate into fewer U.S. dollars.

        Also, while we often produce in the same geographic markets as our products are sold, expenses are relatively concentrated in the United
States compared with sales, so that in a time of strengthening of the U.S. dollar, our profit margins could be reduced. While we use financial
instruments to hedge certain foreign currency exposures, this does not insulate us completely from currency effects.

        We may use financial instruments from time to time to manage exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations, which use exposes us to
counterparty credit risk for nonperformance. See Note 11, "Derivatives and Hedging Activities," of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for further discussion, which is contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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         The full realization of our deferred tax assets, including primarily those related to the Settlement agreement and the other than
temporary impairment of our investments in auction rate securities, may be affected by a number of factors.

        We have deferred tax assets related to the Settlement agreement, the other than temporary impairment of our investments in auction rate
securities, other accruals not yet deductible for tax purposes, foreign net operating loss carry forwards and investment tax allowances, employee
benefit items, and other items. We have established valuation allowances to reduce those deferred tax assets to an amount that is more likely
than not to be realized. Our ability to utilize these deferred tax assets depends in part upon our future operating results. We expect to realize
these assets over an extended period. Consequently, changes in tax laws could cause actual results to differ from projections.

        Our largest deferred tax asset relates to our Settlement agreement, including accrued interest. The value of this asset may be affected by our
tax situation at the time of the payment under the Settlement agreement as well as by the value of our common stock at that time. The deferred
tax asset reflects the fair market value of 18 million shares of our common stock at a post-split price of $17.86 per share based on the price when
the Settlement agreement was reached in 2002.

         Our annual effective tax rate can materially change as a result of changes in mix of earnings and other factors.

        Our overall effective tax rate is equal to our total tax expense as a percentage of total earnings before tax. However, tax expense and
benefits are not recognized on a global basis but rather on a jurisdictional or legal entity basis. Changes in statutory tax rates and laws and
ongoing audits by domestic and international authorities could affect the amount of income taxes and other taxes paid by us. Also, changes in the
mix of earnings between jurisdictions and assumptions used in the calculation of income taxes, among other factors, could have a significant
effect on our overall effective tax rate.

         We experience competition in our operating segments and in the geographic areas in which we operate.

        Our products compete with similar products made by other manufacturers and with a number of other types of materials or products. We
compete on the basis of performance characteristics of our products, as well as service, price and innovations in technology. A number of
competing domestic and foreign companies are strong, well-established companies. Our inability to maintain a competitive advantage could
result in lower prices or lower sales volume, which would have a negative impact on our consolidated financial position and results of
operations.

         A slowing pipeline of new technologies and solutions at favorable margins could adversely affect our performance and prospects for
future growth.

        Our competitive advantage is due in part to the ability to develop and introduce new products in a timely manner at favorable margins. The
development and introduction cycle of new products can be lengthy and involve high levels of investment. New products may not meet sales
expectations or margin expectations due to many factors, including our inability to accurately predict demand, end-user preferences and evolving
industry standards, to resolve technical and technological challenges in a timely and cost-effective manner, and to achieve manufacturing
efficiencies.

         A major loss of or disruption in our manufacturing and distribution operations or our information systems and telecommunication
resources could adversely affect our business.

        If we experienced a natural disaster, such as a tornado, hurricane, earthquake or other severe weather event, or a casualty loss from an event
such as a fire or flood, at one of our larger strategic facilities or if such event affected a key supplier, our supply chain, or our information
systems and
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telecommunication resources, then there could be a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations.

         The price of our common stock has on occasion experienced significant price and volume fluctuations. The sale of substantial amounts
of our common stock could adversely affect the price of the common stock. One stockholder has beneficial ownership of approximately 37%
of our common shares.

        The market price of our common stock has experienced and may continue to experience significant price and volume fluctuations greater
than those experienced by the broader stock market. In addition, our announcements of our quarterly operating results, future developments
relating to the W. R. Grace & Co. bankruptcy, additional litigation against us, the effects of animal and food-related health issues, spikes in raw
material and energy related costs, changes in general conditions in the economy or the financial markets and other developments affecting us,
our customers, suppliers and competitors could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially.

        The sale or the availability for sale of a large number of shares of our common stock in the public market could adversely affect the price of
the common stock. According to a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 13, 2009, Davis Selected Advisers, L.P. reported beneficial
ownership of 57,784,149 shares, or approximately 37%, of the outstanding shares of our common stock.

        While the Schedule 13G/A filed by Davis Selected Advisers, L.P. indicates that the beneficially owned shares of our common stock were
not acquired for the purpose of changing or influencing the control of the Company, if that stockholder were to change its purpose for holding
our common stock from investment to attempting to change or influence the management of the Company, this concentration of our common
stock could potentially affect the Company and the price of our common stock. Also, Davis Selected Advisers has a significant voting block
with respect to matters submitted to a stockholder vote, including the election of directors and the approval of potential business combination
transactions.

         Our ability to successfully achieve the targeted benefits associated with our cost reduction and productivity program and our global
manufacturing strategy could affect our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

        We are close to completion of a cost reduction and productivity program and our global manufacturing strategy. The goals of these
initiatives include the expansion of capacity in growing markets, better operating efficiencies, a lower cost structure, more effective technology
implementation and increased productivity. There can be no assurances that the estimated costs savings or efficiencies will materialize to the
extent intended. There are risks inherent in undertaking such programs, including the sustainability of developing markets, shifts in customer
preferences, competitive forces and technologies, cost overruns and unanticipated consequences, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

         The current weakness in the financial and credit markets and other factors could potentially lead to the carrying amount of our
goodwill and other long-lived assets becoming impaired and our investments in auction rate securities becoming further impaired.

        The Company has seven reporting units that are included in the Company's segment reporting structure, six of which have significant
goodwill balances allocated to them. The six reporting units with goodwill balances are: Food Packaging, Food Solutions, Protective Packaging,
Shrink Packaging (included in the Protective Packaging segment) and Specialty Materials and Medical Applications (included in the Other
category).

        The Company tests goodwill for impairment on a reporting unit basis annually during the fourth quarter of each year and at other times if
events or circumstances exist that indicate the carrying value
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of goodwill may potentially no longer be recoverable. In the first quarter of 2009, due to a decline in the Company's Protective Packaging,
Shrink Packaging and Specialty Materials reporting units' forecasted operating results, and to a lesser extent, a decline in the Company's
EBITDA (defined as earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization) multiples and the price of the Company's common stock
since December 31, 2008, the Company performed an interim goodwill impairment assessment for these three reporting units at March 31, 2009.
The Company completed step one of its interim impairment test and the fair value analysis for goodwill and concluded that there were no
impairments present, and accordingly no impairment charge was recorded as of March 31, 2009.

        In the second quarter of 2009, due to a further decline in the Company's Specialty Materials reporting unit's forecasted operating results, the
Company performed an interim goodwill impairment assessment and completed step one of its interim impairment test and fair value analysis
for goodwill related to this reporting unit. The Company concluded that there was no impairment present and accordingly no impairment charge
was recorded as of June 30, 2009.

        In the third quarter of 2009, the Company determined that there were no events or changes in circumstances that occurred that would
indicate that the fair value of any of the Company's reporting units may be below their carrying value. The Company reviewed various factors
consistent with prior quarters' analyses. These factors included such items as the Company's reporting units' forecasted operating results, its
common stock price and its EBITDA multiples, all of which have either remained constant or have improved since June 30, 2009. As a result,
the Company was not required to complete a step one interim impairment test and fair value analysis for goodwill related to any of its reporting
units.

        Although the Company determined that there was no goodwill impairment through the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the future
occurrence of a potential indicator of impairment, such as a decrease in expected earnings, adverse equity market conditions, a decline in current
market multiples, a decline in the price of the Company's common stock, a significant adverse change in legal factors or business climate, an
adverse action or assessment by a regulator, unanticipated competition, strategic decisions made in response to economic or competitive
conditions, or a more-likely-than-not expectation that a reporting unit or a significant portion of a reporting unit will be sold or disposed of,
could require an interim assessment for some or all of the reporting units after the next required annual assessment in the fourth quarter of 2009.
In the event of an adverse change of the natures described above, the Company may be required to recognize a non-cash impairment of
goodwill, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

        We recorded a $34.0 million pre-tax charge in 2008 as a result of recognizing impairment related to an other-than-temporary decline in the
fair market value of our auction rate securities investments. This impairment was due to the continuing decline in the creditworthiness of the
issuers of these securities and the lack of a market for auction rate securities generally. The original cost of our auction rate securities
investments was $44.7 million and the estimated remaining fair market value was $10.7 million at December 31, 2008 and $13.8 million at
September 30, 2009. We continue to monitor developments in the market for auction rate securities including the specific securities in which we
have invested. If liquidity conditions relating to these securities or the issuers worsen, we may recognize additional other than temporary
impairments, which would result in the recognition of additional losses on our condensed consolidated statement of operations.
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         Product liability claims or regulatory actions could adversely affect our financial results or harm our reputation or the value of our
brands.

        Claims for losses or injuries purportedly caused by some of our products arise in the ordinary course of our business. In addition to the risk
of substantial monetary judgments, product liability claims or regulatory actions could result in negative publicity that could harm our reputation
in the marketplace or adversely impact the value of our brands or our ability to sell our products in certain jurisdictions. We could also be
required to recall possibly defective products, which could result in adverse publicity and significant expenses. Although we maintain product
liability insurance coverage, potential product liability claims could be excluded or exceed coverage limits under the terms of our insurance
policies or could result in increased costs for such coverage.

         Our subsidiaries hold substantially all of our assets and conduct substantially all of our operations, and as a result we rely on
distributions or advances from our subsidiaries.

        We conduct substantially all of our business through two direct wholly-owned subsidiaries, Cryovac, Inc. and Sealed Air Corporation (US).
These two subsidiaries, directly and indirectly, own substantially all of the assets of our business and conduct operations themselves and through
other subsidiaries around the globe. Therefore, we depend on distributions or advances from our subsidiaries to meet our debt service and other
obligations and to pay dividends with respect to shares of our common stock. Contractual provisions, laws or regulations to which we or any of
our subsidiaries may become subject, tax inefficiencies and the financial condition and operating requirements of subsidiaries may reduce funds
available for service of our indebtedness, dividends, and general corporate purposes.

Cautionary Notice Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

        The SEC encourages companies to disclose forward-looking statements so that investors can better understand a company's future prospects
and make informed investment decisions. Some of the Company's statements in this report, in documents incorporated by reference into this
report and in the Company's future oral and written statements, may be forward-looking. These statements reflect the Company's beliefs and
expectations as to future events and trends affecting the Company's business, its consolidated financial position and its results of operations.
These forward-looking statements are based upon the Company's current expectations concerning future events and discuss, among other things,
anticipated future performance and future business plans. Forward-looking statements are identified by such words and phrases as "anticipates,"
"believes," "could be," "estimates," "expects," "intends," "may," "plans to," "will" and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are
necessarily subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside the control of the Company that could cause actual results to differ
materially from these statements.

        The following are important factors that the Company believes could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the Company's
forward-looking statements: the implementation of the Company's Settlement agreement regarding the various asbestos-related, fraudulent
transfer, successor liability, and indemnification claims made against it arising from a 1998 transaction with W. R. Grace & Co.; general
economic conditions, particularly as they affect packaging utilization; credit ratings; raw material pricing and availability; changes in the value
of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar; the effects of animal and food-related health issues; pandemics; legal and environmental matters
involving the Company; and the other risk factors set forth above. Except as required by the federal securities laws, the Company undertakes no
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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 Item 2.    Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

        (c)   Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

        The table below sets forth the total number of shares of the Company's common stock, par value $0.10 per share, that the Company
repurchased in each month of the quarter ended September 30, 2009, the average price paid per share and the maximum number of shares that
may yet be purchased under the Company's publicly announced plans or programs.

Period

Total
Number
of Shares

Purchased(1)
(a)

Average
Price Paid
per Share(1)

(b)

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans
or Programs(2)

(c)

Maximum
Number of Shares
that May Yet Be
Purchased Under
the Plans or
Programs(2)

(d)
Balance as of June 30, 2009 15,975,600
July 1, 2009 through July 31, 2009 2,000 � � 15,975,600
August 1, 2009 through August 31, 2009 11,251 � � 15,975,600
September 1, 2009 through September 30,
2009 2,000 � � 15,975,600

Total 15,251 � � 15,975,600

(1)
The Company did not purchase any shares during the quarter ended September 30, 2009 pursuant to its publicly announced program
(described below). The Company did repurchase shares by means of (a) shares withheld from awards under the Company's 2005
contingent stock plan pursuant to the provision thereof that permits tax withholding obligations or other legally required charges to be
satisfied by having the Company withhold shares from an award under that plan and (b) shares reacquired pursuant to the forfeiture
provision of the Company's 2005 contingent stock plan. (See table below.) The Company reports price calculations in column (b) in
the table above only for shares purchased as part of its publicly announced program, when applicable, and includes commissions. For
shares withheld for tax withholding obligations or other legally required charges, the Company withholds shares at a price equal to
their fair market value. The Company does not make payments for shares reacquired by the Company pursuant to the forfeiture
provision of the 2005 contingent stock plan as those shares are simply forfeited.

Period

Shares
withheld for tax
obligations
and charges

(a)

Average
withholding
price for
shares in
column
"a"
(b)

Forfeitures
under
2005

Contingent
Stock Plan

(c)
Total
(d)

July 2009 � � 2,000 2,000
August 2009 4,751 $ 18.48 6,500 11,251
September 2009 � � 2,000 2,000

Total 4,751 $ 18.48 10,500 15,251

(2)
On August 9, 2007, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had approved a share repurchase program, authorizing the
Company to repurchase in the aggregate up to 20 million shares of its issued and outstanding common stock. This current program
replaced the Company's prior share repurchase program, which was terminated. Through September 30, 2009, the Company had
repurchased 4,024,400 shares of the Company's common stock under the current program, leaving 15,975,600 shares of common stock
authorized for repurchase under the current program. The current program has no set expiration date.
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 Item 6.    Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 Unofficial Composite Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company as currently in effect. (Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3, Registration No. 333-108544, is incorporated herein by reference.)

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company as currently in effect. (Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K,
Date of Report May 20, 2009, File No. 1-12139, is incorporated herein by reference.)

31.1 Certification of William V. Hickey pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), dated November 9, 2009.

31.2 Certification of David H. Kelsey pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), dated November 9, 2009.

32 Certification of William V. Hickey and David H. Kelsey, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, dated November 9, 2009.
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 SIGNATURE

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

SEALED AIR CORPORATION
Date: November 9, 2009 By: /s/ JEFFREY S. WARREN

Jeffrey S. Warren
Controller

(Duly Authorized Executive Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer)
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